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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
arisk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”’) of China Natural
Investment Company Limited (the "‘Company’) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
(the "GEM Listing Rules’) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2013 (the "Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s major business includes the manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products, provision of advertising and public relations
services and investment holding. Despite the fluctuating global
economy during the Year, the Group reached the target performances
in its major business areas.

Advertising and Public Relations Business

As Hong Kong is the world’s leading financial centre, and with the more
dynamic growth of the Asian economies, demand for financial services
is blooming and the public relations industry is growing concurrently.
Benefited from its valuable services provided to its customers and the
good relationship with its customers, PR Asia Consultants Limited ("PR
Asia") achieved to gain growing reputation and stronger foothold in
the financial public relations industry in both Hong Kong and the
PRC. For the Year, the Group's provisions of advertising and public
relations services achieved a revenue of approximately HK$21,852,000,
accounting for approximately 49.44% of the Group's total revenue. It
also represented a drop of approximately 16.05% as compared with
that of last year, which amounted to approximately HK$26,030,000.
The decrease in revenue for the Year was mainly attributable to the
decrease in the income from public relations projects provided to its
customers.

PR Asia is a Hong Kong based public relations consultancy company
focusingonfinancialcommunications.PR Asia provides strategic counselling
services in corporate communications, media relations, investor relations,
issue/crisis management, media training and event management to
different clients including the companies listed in Hong Kong, private
banks, quasi-government bodies and multi-national corporations with
headquarters in Asia, Europe and America respectively.

PR Asia devises and implements effective business and marketing
strategies from a communication perspective for its clients, with a
view to enabling them to successfully achieve brand-building and
establish an appropriate image to the targeted customer base. It also
provides training, through simulating different scenarios of TV and
print media interviews, to its clients for different kinds of interviews,
media conferences and promotion events to ensure that the key
messages are communicated from its clients to the public.
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In addition, PR Asia could render assistance to its clients in reputation
crisis management. The goal of PR Asia is to help its clients to manage
crisis, balance the interests of different stakeholders and ensure
corporate statements and undertakings are announced appropriately.
PR Asia's income source is mainly divided into two major segments,
namely retainer fees for services provided for a fixed period and
project-based income.

With wider spectrum of clientele, the Group intends to continue to
broaden the customer base and strengthen our market position.

Investments in Held-for-trading Securities

The Company had held-for-trading investments in the two listed
securities in Hong Kong, the market values amounted to approximately
HK$13,577,000 as at 30 June 2013. During the Year, a gain of approximately
HK$2,594,000 was recorded. The investments in the listed securities is
one of the treasury policy of the Group for the use of certain surplus
funds retained by the Group. Currently, the Group has no plan for further
investments in the held-for-trading securities.

Manufacturing and Selling Pharmaceutical Products Business
Nowadays with the pursuit of healthy living and increases in Hong
Kong's senior population, the demand for pharmaceutical products is
growing rapidly. The Directors are of the view that the public’s demand
for medicine will continue to increase while a sustainable expansion
in the pharmaceutical market is expected. The demand is triggered
by the rapidly aging population and rising the standard of living in
Hong Kong. Itis also believed that the Department of Health is looking
into adopting PIC/S (The Pharmaceutical Inspection Convention and
Pharmaceutical Inspection Cooperation Scheme) standards to govern
pharmaceutical manufacturing. PIC/S governance will imply higher
Good Manufacturing Practice ("GMP") standards in a bid to bring the
Hong Kong pharmaceutical environment in line with most western
developed countries and some health authorities in the region, such as
Singapore, Malaysia and Taiwan. Nevertheless, the Group will continue
to review the development strategy in this business with respect to
the new licensing requirement for the operation of a GMP certified
factory in Hong Kong. For the Year, the Group's pharmaceutical
business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$22,351,000 in the
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products, accounting for
approximately 50.56% of the Group's total revenue. It also represented
a drop of approximately 11.39% as compared with that of last year,
which amounted to approximately HK$25,223,000. The decrease was
attributable mainly to the slowdown of the economy experienced
during the Year.
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The pharmaceutical group comprises two sub-groups, namely:

- Vida Group: Manufacturing and sale of generic western
medicines. The Vida Group's products are mainly branded
generic medicines, such as remedies for cold and flu,
cough, fever and skin infection. The Vida Group possesses a
manufacturing licence and a wholesale poisons licence issued
by the Department of Health of Hong Kong which is renewable
annually, and is capable of producing medicines in different
dosage forms including tablets, capsules, syrups, creams and
ointments. Its major customers include private doctors, the
Hospital Authority, over-the-counter retailers and medicine
traders.

Vida Group has taken steps to prepare for the imminent
transition of the governance of Hong Kong pharmaceutical
industry to PIC/S standards. Vida Group is evaluating the
options either to upgrade its facilities (which may involve
temporary production suspension) at the present site or in a
suitable new location, or to outsource the production of some
of its products to eligible third party producers.

- Kingston Group: Marketing and sale of health supplements,
traditional Chinese medicines, sliming pills and beauty
products. Kingston Group recently introduced a series of new
health supplements, including DHA and colostrum pills, in a
bid to expand the product offering. The Kingston Group sells
its products via popular retail chains, internal sales platform
and selected private clinics in Hong Kong. No specific licence/
permit is required for the business of Kingston Group.

Fluorite Processing and Trading Business

On 15 May 2012, a sales and purchase agreement was entered into
between the Vendors and the Group to acquire a fluorite processing
and trading business located in Outer Mongolia, at a consideration of
HK$148,000,000 (subject to adjustment) in cash (the "Acquisition”). The
completion of the Acquisition took place on 31 July 2013

The Directors are of the view that the market demand for fluorite is
significant and the prospect of the industry is promising. The Board
believes the existing managements of the Group are able to identify
and manage the local suppliers and explore potential customers
in PRC and overseas. The Group expects that with the successful
establishment of the customer base, the fluoride processing and
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trading business will provide a new and steady stream of revenue to
the Group in the coming years. The Group could provide a full chain
from upstream of fluorite processing to downstream of supplying
fluorite particles of higher grade for customer consumption, which
would enhance the competitive strength and further development
in the industry.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, in the view of the uncertainty over the global
economic environment, the Group will maintain its diversified
investment strategy in order to spread and lower the business risks,
broaden the income source and maximise the shareholders’ values,
so as to secure the sustainable and stable growth across the Group’s
businesses. Following the completion of the Acquisition in July 2013,
the management believes that the Acquisition will not only meet the
Group's development strategy, but also provides an opportunity for
the Group to explore a new stream of business in the processing and
trading of fluorites and other natural resources.

The coming year is expected to be another year of complex external
macroeconomic conditions. However, the management believes that
opportunities coexist with challenges. With the intensive attention paid
to the market changes, the Group will continue to modify its existing
business strategies to cope with the changing business environment
and make every effort to seek potential investment projects in line
with the Group’s future development so as to optimise its mix of
investments in order to expand the value base for the shareholders.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other business
associates of the Company for their continued support; and also to
every Director, the management team and all staff for their valuable
contribution during the Year.

Li Wai Hung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 September 2013
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue from continuing operations
of approximately HK$44,203,000 (2012: HK$51,252,000), representing
a decrease of 13.75% compared with the previous year. The gross
profit from continuing operations for the Year was approximately
HK$14,322,000 (2012: HK$19,540,000), representing a decrease of
26.70% compared with the previous year.

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for the
Year was HK0.4 cent (2012: basic loss per share of HK1.3 cents).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$11,683,000 (2012:
HK$16,181,000). The significant improvement was mainly due to gains
arising from (i) change in fair value of held-for-trading investments;

loss of approximately

(ii) share of profits of associates; and (iii) disposal of discontinued
operation.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group's revenue represents revenue arising from two major
segments of business, namely (i) provision of diagnostic testing
and healthcare services, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products; and (ii) provision of advertising and public relations
services.

During the Year, revenue from provision of diagnostic testing and
healthcare services, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products and provision of advertising and public relations services
were approximately HK$22,351,000 and HK$21,852,000 respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2013, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$120,984,000 (2012: HK$32,847,000). Net current assets
amounted to approximately HK$206,629,000 (2012: HK$103,314,000).

As at 30 June 2013, current ratio (defined as total current assets divided
by total current liabilities) was approximately 34.72 times (2012: 12.54
times). Gearing ratio (expressed as the ratio of total liabilities over total
assets) was approximately 0.01 (2012: 0.03).

The Group did not have any bank or other borrowings as at 30 June
2013 (2012: Nil).
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2013, total equity attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$472,611,000 (2012: HK$313,138,000).

On 30 November 2012, a total of 1,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.05
each was issued at the issue price of HK$0.05 per share, pursuant to
the share placing agreement entered into between the Company and
the placing agent on 9 May 2012.

On 18 March 2013, principal amount of HK$40,000,000 owed to the
holder of the convertible note was converted to shares of the Company,
resulting in the issue of 800,000,000 new shares of the Company of
HKS$0.05 each, at the conversion price of HK$0.05 per conversion share,
pursuant to the convertible note placing agreement entered into
between the Company and the placing agent on 9 May 2012.

On 2 May 2013, the remaining outstanding principle amount of
HK$60,000,000 owed to the holder of the convertible note was
fully converted to shares of the Company, resulting in the issue of
1,200,000,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each, at the conversion price
of HK$0.05 per conversion share, pursuant to the convertible note
placing agreement dated 9 May 2012.

EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. It is the Group's policy for its
operating entities to operate in their corresponding local currencies to
minimise currency risks. The Group had an insignificant exchange risk
exposure since the principal businesses were conducted and recorded
in Hong Kong dollars during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

(a) Disposal of a Subsidiary
In July 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in Core Medical Technology Limited to an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$360,000.

(b) Acquisition of an Investment Property
In August 2012, the Group acquired an investment property
situated in Hong Kong from an independent third party at a
cash consideration of HK$6,600,000.
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(c)

Very Substantial Disposal and Very Substantial
Acquisition (“Transactions”)

On 9 September 2012, the Company announced that a sale and
purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”) dated 7 September
2012 was entered into between Chemosino International
Limited ("CN BVI") (a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), as vendor, and Town Health Asset Management
Limited (“TH Property Holding"), as purchaser. Pursuant to the
SP Agreement, CN BVI has conditionally agreed to sell and TH
Property Holding has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Million Worldwide Investment Limited,
a company wholly owned by CN BVI, at a consideration of
HK$195,000,000 which will be satisfied by the allotment and
issue of new shares in the capital of TH Property Holding (the
“Consideration Shares") by TH Property Holding to CN BVI upon
the completion of the aforesaid disposal. Immediately after the
said completion, CN BVI would in turn own 25% of the issued
share capital of TH Property Holding as enlarged by the issue
of the Consideration Shares. The Transactions constitute a very
substantial disposal and a very substantial acquisition on the
part of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules, and was
completed on 10 December 2012.

Pursuant to the SP Agreement, TH Property Holding had
granted the first right (“First Right”) in favour of the Group to
subscribe for new shares of TH Property Holding if TH Property
Holding proposed to raise fund by issue of new shares of TH
Property Holding within a period of two years commencing
from the completion date of the transactions at the aggregate
consideration of a maximum of HK$100,000,000, which shall
be effected by the giving of a funding notice by TH Property
Holding to the Group.

On 15 May 2013, the Group received a funding notice from
TH Property Holding indicating its intention to raise fund in
the amount of HK$17,000,000 (“Subscription Consideration”)
by way of issue of 17 ordinary shares (“First Right Shares”) of
HKS$1.00 each. On 16 May 2013, the Group issued an exercise
notice to TH Property Holding to notify that it would exercise
the First Right to subscribe for the First Right Shares at the
Subscription Consideration stated in the funding notice and
the completion of subscription took place on 16 May 2013.
Immediately following the completion of the subscription, the
Group's shareholdings in TH Property Holding was increased
to approximately 26.39% by the Group.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENT
As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no significant capital
commitment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 June 2013, none of the assets of the Group were pledged as
security for any banking facilities.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30 June 2013, there were 86 staff members (2012: 109) employed
by the Group.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry
practices and their respective educational background, experience and
performance. On top of the regular remuneration and discretionary
bonus, share options may be granted to selected employees
by reference to the Group's performance as well as individual’s
performance. In addition, each employee enjoys mandatory provident
fund, medical allowance and other fringe benefits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Hung, aged 51, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 30 September 2009 and was appointed as the chairman
of the Company (the “Chairman”) on 22 November 2011. He has over
22 years of experience in sales related works and held senior positions
in various companies.

Mr. Cai Da, aged 38, joined the Company as an executive Director
and vice chairman on 16 May 2013. He was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ") on 16 August 2013.
Mr. Cai holds a Civil Engineering Degree from Hunan University of
Science and Technology. Mr. Cai is the vice president of Shenzhen
General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Cai has been working and taking
the senior managerial positions in a number of mining companies
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"). Mr. Cai has
accumulated over 10 years of experience in oil refinery, mining and
corporate management field. Mr. Cai is currently an executive director
of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (formerly
known as ZMAY Holdings Limited, stock code: 8085), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen Liang, aged 44, joined the Company as an executive Director
on 28 December 2011. Mr. Chen holds a Doctoral Degree in Coal, Oil
and Gas Geology and Exploration from China University of Petroleum
(Beijing). Mr. Chen had been a vice president of CITIC Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1205), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period from September
2005 to November 2006 and a vice president of CITIC Seram Energy
Limited during the period from December 2006 to February 2010.
During the period from April 2010 to July 2011, Mr. Chen had been
an executive director of L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Goodtop Tin International Holdings Limited, stock
code: 195), also a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chen is currently the executive director of Birmingham
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen has accumulated
around 20 years of working experience in petroleum exploration and
development.

Mr. Chen Youhua, aged 41, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 26 November 2012. Mr. Chen holds the Bachelor Degree
of Accountancy from Shandong Economics College, PRC and an
Executive Master Degree of Business Administration from Inner
Mongolia University, PRC. Mr. Chen has worked for a number of mining
companies in PRC, taking the positions of accounting manager or
financial controller of such companies. Mr. Chen has accumulated
over 15 years of working experience in the fields of cost accounting,
financial and corporate management.

China Natural Investment Company Limited Bl X AR E G R A T

HITEE

WKL 515% 0 200999 A30H INAAKRAR &)
EAHTES  WA20MFNARNBEZT AR
RARIZEFE(NER]) - MAEHESHEBITESEE
BENFER  UWERZHEAHESERA -

EE S 0 385 0 FA2013F S A16 A A KRR A)HE
FRITEEFRENERE - WHR2013F8A16BERT
BARNRZITHAR(TTRER]) - B4R E
BRI ASBEETREBEN - AL TARY
THEEBASIER  -BAELTRRZRRA
EAREFBE([FEDFEMAZZBEERABIR
¥ BETZSCEZaRERBABRAM -
BAEEREE  RARBRECXERSERRE
BT F TEER - B2EENAE—RRAIER L
Mz AaE s BEEEGRIERNTERERAE (AIHE
PRZEZERERAF - BRENAIE : 8085) 2 81T
EEo

BRE L - 445% - 20115128288 A KR &
BEARTES - MELERFBEHPRABAZ(L
FOFTEENEE AR E ERE 2 -
200599 A 20064 11 A HA R AE — IR B
FTERETZ AR EEREREGRA (RGN A
5% 0 1205) Z Bl 48%,L - W 2006512 3 E 201092 A
BRf& - ACTIC Seram Energy Limited Z @42 %L - 10
2010F4 A E20114F7 AEARE © BREAE B —RRER
FTER EM 2z A8 F/EEREKRERARA R (A
BEEDERBIERER AR - BRMOARSE  195)
ZHITEZ - REERARBIMERETZA
BMAAEIRIER AR AR (RMBRE - 2309) 2
WITESE - REEARABDHEMAEFTERELD
205 TIEAEBR o

BRARZESRE - 4157 72012511 268 A KRR
RIEEMITES BRI EN PRI R ES/R(E
2 2ERREAFEHTRERNSTHASHEE
ZITAEEITHBELSM - REECHNEZRSD
BREAR WETSHERERMBRESH
fil e BAEERKAGH  UBEEEEEREFAR
FEIRB15F TS ©



Ms. Xiong Yun Huan, aged 42, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 26 November 2012. Ms. Xiong holds a Bachelor Degree from
Wuhan University, PRC. Ms. Xiong has been one of the founders and
directors of Human Digital Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, a company
incorporated in PRC in 2002 and engaging in the manufacturing and
sales of digital printing machines. Ms. Xiong has accumulated nearly
10 years of working experience in the fields of sales and marketing,
corporate and assets management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy, aged 45, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 November 2011. He is a member of
the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”). Mr. Tam has been a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong for over 15 years. He is currently a partner of Messrs. Ho &
Tam, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor Degree of
Laws from the University of London; Bachelor Degree of PRC Laws from
Tsing Hua University; and a Master Degree of Laws from The University
of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive director of China
Fortune Financial Group Limited (formerly known as China Fortune
Group Limited, stock code: 290), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and an independent non-executive director of M
Dream Inworld Limited (stock code: 8100), and EDS Wellness Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China AU Group Holdings Limited, stock
code: 8176), both companies listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Mr.Tam is also a non-executive Director of Larry Jewelry International
Company Limited (formerly known as Eternite International Company
Limited) (stock code: 8351), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange and a non-executive Director of Milan Station Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1150), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, aged 44, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 December 2011. He is
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Chi holds Bachelor of Accountancy
Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is an executive director of (i) Guocang
Group Limited (formerly known as Hua Yi Copper Holdings Limited,
stock code: 559), (ii) China Sandi Holdings Limited (formerly known
as China Grand Forestry Green Resources Group Limited, stock code:
910), (i) Ceneric (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as Morning Star
Resources Limited, stock code: 542), being companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and (iv) M Dream Inworld Limited
(stock code: 8100), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of (i) Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (formerly known as ZMAY
Holdings Limited, stock code: 8085), and (ii) Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148), both companies listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange; (i) Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Sam Woo Holdings Limited, stock code: 2322),
(iv) Perfect Shape (PRC) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1830), and (v)
U'sea Resources International Holdings Limited (stock code: 195), being
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He had
been an independent non-executive director of Interchina Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 202) for period from 4 October 2011
to 15 August 2012. Mr. Chi has accumulated over 20 years of working
experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr. Yan Shengxian, aged 58, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 November 2012. He is a member of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Yan graduated from Hangzhou University, PRC. Mr.
Yan is a certified senior engineer in PRC who is qualified for carrying
out geological survey and exploration. Mr. Yan has accumulated over
35 years of experience in geological exploration. Mr. Yan and the
projects under his supervision have obtained several awards in relation
to geological mine searching. Mr. Yan is currently the judging panel
expert of geological mine searching for Zhejiang Province, PRC. Mr.
Yan has also published a number of articles regarding geology in
national journals in PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ling Koon Wah, aged 57, joined the Group as the managing
director of a wholly-owned subsidiary on 2 November 2009. Mr. Ling
has worked in the financial media industry for over 30 years and has
in-depth experience and extensive network in the financial media
industry. Mr. Ling is mainly responsible for the management of the
operation of the public relations business.

Mr. Fong Shiu Kai, aged 53, joined the Group as the director of a
wholly-owned subsidiary on 1 March 2013. Mr. Fong has over 20 years
of experience in the pharmaceutical and health care products industry.
Mr. Fong is mainly responsible for the management of the operation
of the manufacturing and sale of various health care products and
generic western medicines.

Mr. Luk Chi Shing, aged 44, joined the Company as the financial
controller and company secretary on 20 January 2012. Mr. Luk holds
a Bachelors Degree of Business Administration in Accountancy from
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Luk is an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Luk has
extensive working experience in financial management, auditing and
public listed companies for over 15 years.
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good corporate governance
standard. The Board believes that a good corporate governance
standard will provide a framework for the Group to formulate the
business strategies and policies, and manage the associated risks
through effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance the
transparency of the Group and strengthen the accountability to the
shareholders and creditors of the Company.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company endeavors in maintaining high standards of corporate
governance for the enhancement of shareholders'value. The Company
has applied the principles of and complied with all the applicable code
provisions and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Company regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors have complied with the required standard of dealings and
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of the
Company and the implementation of the investment policy of the
Company, which includes, inter alia, the adoption of long term
corporate strategies, assessment of investment projects, supervision
of the management of the Company to ensure that the Company’s
investments are conducted in accordance with the objectives of the
Company, and reviewing financial performance.

The Board currently has eight Directors, among them, five are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.
Members of the Board have different professional and relevant industry
experiences and background so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s business.
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The Board holds meeting on a regular basis and will meet on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
The Board held 22 meetings during the Year. Directors are aware that
they should give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. The attendance of each Director for the Board meeting is

Corporate Governance Report
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set out below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors:
Mr. Li Wai Hung - Chairman

Mr. Cai Da - Vice Chairman & Chief Executive

Officer (appointed on 16 May 2013)
Mr. Chen Liang
Mr. Chen Youhua (appointed on
26 November 2012)
Ms. Xiong Yun Huan (appointed on
26 November 2012)
Mr. Bai Jian (resigned with effect from 16
May 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Yan Shengxian (appointed on
26 November 2012)

Mr. Leung Chi Kin (retired with effect
from 26 November 2012)

Board
meeting
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BITESE
TRERBEE-F/FE 22/22
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PRS0 22/22
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REEIRA L
(R20124F 11 H26 HHEZ(T) 16/17
TRER A
(201345 A 16 HBET) 12/19
BUFHTES
ELL RIS E 20/22
FERERE 21/22
ERAEB A
(R2012F11 H26 HEZ(T) 16/17
BB
(2012411 H26 HRIE) 5/6

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 12
to 15 of this annual report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are published
at the GEM website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business or
family relationship among members of the Board and between the
Chairman and the CEO of the Company as at 30 June 2013. All of them
are free to exercise their individual judgment.
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Directors have been supplied with adequate and relevant information
in a timely manner. The Directors may seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company.
The Company will, upon request, provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist them to discharge their
duties to the Company. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group’s business to the management of the
relevant segments and divisions. The management is responsible for
the implementation and adoption of the Company’s strategies and
policies. The delegated functions and tasks are periodically reviewed
by the Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. In 2013, the
Company has arranged a training to all Directors which was provided
by the accredited service provider.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the Chairman and the CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual.

To reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility, the roles
of the Chairman and CEO are currently segregated and performed by
Mr. Li Wai Hung and Mr. Cai Da.

The Chairman is responsible for formulating the overall strategies and
policies of the Company. In addition, the Chairman provides leadership
for the Board and ensures its effectiveness in all aspects. With the
support of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at the Board meetings.

On 16 August 2013, Mr. Chen Liang resigned as the CEO but remains
as the executive Director and Mr. Cai Da was appointed as the new
CEO.The CEO is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations and focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors which representing more than
one-third of the Board, and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board prepares
its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with
required standards, and ensure the Company maintains appropriate
system to protect the interests and shareholders of the Company. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation in respect of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such
confirmation, the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a specific term of one
year. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM") at least once
every three years in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

In accordance with the CG Code, the Board established three board
committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company'’s affairs. All board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the board committees are posted on the GEM website
of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resource to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.
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Corporate Governance Report
PREOWMS

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy (committee chairman), Mr. Chi
Chi Hung, Kenneth and Mr. Yan Shengxian.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (i) making
recommendation to the Board on policies and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration; (ii) determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;
and (i) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held three meeting during the Year
and reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company, assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended specific remuneration packages of the Directors and

senior management to the Board. The attendance of each member
during the Year is set out below:

FHEEE

ARBIEKIFMEZER S URIEEFEARTR
EMATHBERE FHEE@h =Bk
WITESMANK - ELMEE(ZER®ER)  F
TIERERBREBRE

FMEEEIRRERNNEFTSHERZRSESN
EREEBZAEFHBREGERE YNEFE
HERBRRILARAZARZEFAERRZE
FIBER  WEEENATESRSREREZ
FIETE RN EFTSHBERIFNTESZ
FrEM -

RAFE  FHZESLRT=RNER LA
RAZHMEER - FERATEERSREEEZ
KRR ARAEFSHBEEAEENEAEEE
ZEEHNGFE - AFEEKE ZHFERBIT:

Number of
meetings
attended

Members HESBXE
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy — Chairman B E - 3/3
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEESRE 3/3
Mr. Yan Shengxian (appointed on BAEBLE

26 November 2012) (2012411 526 HEZ(F) 3/3
Mr. Leung Chi Kin (resigned with effect RERLE

from 26 November 2012) (R20124F 11 H26 H BFF) -/~
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. On 29 August
2013, the Board resolved the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) to be adopted by the Nomination Committee. The Board
Diversity Policy sets out the approach to diversity on the Board. In
reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity, which
would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy (committee chairman),
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth and Mr. Yan Shengxian.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
(i) formulating nomination policy, (i) making recommendations
to the Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and
Board succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, (iii) reviewing the size, structure, composition and diversity
of the Board, (iv) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and (v) review the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year and
made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of directors
and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board. The
attendance of each member during the Year is set out below:

Members

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy — Chairman BLE RS E —

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth TEMRE
Mr. Yan Shengxian (appointed on BRAEBLAE

26 November 2012)
Mr. Leung Chi Kin (resigned with effect
from 26 November 2012)

(R20124F 11 H26 HEZ(T)

(R20124E 11 26 H BHE)

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of
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2/2
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Corporate Governance Report
PREOWMS

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (committee chairman), Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy
and Mr. Yan Shengxian.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
Company’s annual report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly
reports, (i) provide advice and comments thereon to the Board, and
(iii) review and supervise the Group's financial reporting and internal
control procedures.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. One of the
meetings was attended by the Company’s external auditors so that
the members of the Audit Committee could exchange their views and
concerns with the auditors.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group's quarterly reports for
the three months and nine months ended 30 September 2012
and 31 March 2013 respectively, interim report for the six months
ended 31 December 2012 and the Group's audited annual results
for the year ended 30 June 2013. The Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of
the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
be nominated for re-appointment as the auditors of the Company
at the forthcoming AGM. The accounts for the years ended 30 June
2011 and 2012 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. In March
2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Save for the above, there has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

The attendance of each member during the Year is set out below:

Members

FREEE

ARBIEERIUEZZEE WEREEXER
STHEARETEABESE BRZESR=2S
MOFMITEREK  BRFEELRE(ZEEE
)~ BEASTERBEBRE

BERREGCEIEMBERNENARR 2 FR Mk
B PHRELRFERS  (IBERNEFERED
BARERE  RiNEHMEEASEZMBHRK
KARREIERRFT

RAFEE BRRZBEGERTHAERE - ARQH
SNERZBENSIERE S —REE  UWEEERRE

T INE R
BEXNERMNER RIRHAEE 2 HE -

EREZESE A REHNASEEE20129F9H30H
IF=E A REZ2013F3A318BIENEA 2 FEE R
S HE201NF12A38EANEARA ZFHREMN
NAREBEZE2013F6A30B I FEZEEZEF
XE - BEREZEGNRAEE UK RREAI
EmEFRNESeREEERDERES: -

REERAFEZGAMBRERTABEFE A
EHFBRAREZ  MBEA I ELAER
RElZEHBEREERERBFTFRESER - BZE
BECRESSENERER  IRBEESE
MEEMERARRERERRAFAS FEET
BN BZEAD o REBENE E2011F K2012F
6A30BILFEZRE THBEESHMEHME
% o R2012F38 - G SR BB 2B ER
BRECHMEEMERAR - BLEdEN  ©
BEZFTM—F AR AZEENTET A A
BE) o

AEEEKRBZHFERBIAT

Number of
meetings

attended
HESEXE

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth — Chairman TEESRE-TF 4/4
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy Eladbie 3/4
Mr. Yan Shengxian (appointed on BRAEBSE

26 November 2012) (R20124F 11 H26 HEZ(F) 2/2
Mr. Leung Chi Kin (resigned with effect RERSE

from 26 November 2012) (R20124F 11 726 HFHE) 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in 29 March
2012. Any nomination of directors will be reviewed and assessed
by Nomination Committee for his suitability on the basis of the
background, experience, professional skill, nature of existing positions
held, ability to commit time and effort to carry out his duties and
responsibilities effectively and the diversity of the Board. Suitable
candidates will be recommended by Nomination Committee to the
Board for consideration of appointment. Pursuant to the bye-laws of
the Company, any Director appointed to fill vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or AGM of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting, and every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and shall be eligible for re-election at such AGM.

Any further re-appointment of an independent non-executive Director,
who has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders. Up to
the report date, no independent non-executive Director had been
appointed by the Company for over nine years.

In order to enable the shareholders making an informed decision on
the re-election of Directors, the biographical details demonstrating
qualifications, experience, expertise, leadership and other directorships
held in listed companies of the retiring Directors were set out in the
circular which was dispatched to the Shareholders accompanied with
annual report 2013.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, provide both
statutory audit and non-audit services to the Group. For the Year, fee
for statutory audit for the Group amounts to HK$430,000. Non-audit
services include reporting on certain information included in the
Company’s circulars issued during the Year. Total fee paid by the Group
for non-audit services during the Year was HK$840,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit and
cash flows for the Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis, and have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently, with
applicable disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and
pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements.
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The statement issued by the auditors of the Company, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited, regarding their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages
34 to 35 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for internal control of the
Group, including risk management, and sets appropriate policies
having regard to the objectives of the Group. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, has continued to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of financial and non-financial controls. The system of
internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Controls are monitored by management review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides shareholders with high standards of disclosure
and financial transparency in a timely manner through the publication
of quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars
on the GEM website of the Stock Exchange. Such published documents
together with the corporate information of the Company are also
available on the Company’s website (http://www.chinanatural.com.hk).

During the Year, separate resolutions were proposed at the general
meetings of the Company for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of Directors.

The chairman of the meeting explained the procedures for conducting
a poll at the beginning of each general meeting of the Company held
during the Year. The results of the poll were published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding Company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group's operations for the
Year by business activities is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
36 to 37 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year (2012: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 132 of this annual
report.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of disposal of subsidiaries during the Year are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013 are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Particulars of investment properties of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SHARE OPTIONS
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 40 of this annual report and in note 28 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders comprised the share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounts to HK$225,200,419 (2012:
HK$236,056,373). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the provisions
of its memorandum and articles of association and provided that
immediately following the payment of distributions or dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s articles of
association, dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the Company.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Wai Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Cai Da (Vice Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 16 May 2013)
Mr. Chen Liang
Mr. Chen Youhua
(appointed on 26 November 2012)
Ms. Xiong Yun Huang
(appointed on 26 November 2012)
Mr. Bai Jian
(resigned with effect from 16 May 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
Mr. Yan Shengxian
(appointed on 26 November 2012)
Mr. Leung Chi Kin
(retired with effect from 26 November 2012)

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy, Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth and Mr. Yan Shengxian
have been appointed as independent non-executive Directors for a
term of one year expiring on 9 November 2013, 27 December 2013
and 25 November 2013 respectively. Their appointments are subject
to retirement by rotation and other related provisions as stipulated
in the articles of association of the Company.

During the Year, Mr. Leung Chi Kin has retired as independent non-
executive Director on 26 November 2012.
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Report of the Directors
ESEWE

Other than as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and Future
Ordinance (“the SFO"); or who was directly or indirectly, to be interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company
or any other members of the Group, were as follows:

Long Position in Ordinary Shares of HK$0.05 Each of the
Company

Name of Shareholders

RREMHE EEME

Beneficial owner
EmEB A
Controlled entity

Tai Pu Mining International Co., Ltd (“Note”)
FEBEERBARAFHED
Mr. Hu Zhixiong (“Note”)

W28 o o A ([ BT D) EREE
Mr. Zhang Lijun Personal
SRAIE e fELA
Note:  Tai PuMining International Co,, Ltd is a company wholly and beneficially

owned by Mr. Hu Zhixiong.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company, and based on the
public records filed on the website of the Stock Exchange and records
kept by the Company, no other person or corporation has interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO; or, who was directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of the Company or any other members of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2013, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings in
securities by the Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “Continuing Connected Transaction” as
mentioned below, there were no contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business, to which the Company or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a Director had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there were any
other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
between the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 13 June 2013, C.N. TaiPu (Shenzhen) Investment Company Limited
(the"Tenant”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) with Mr. Hu Meng
(the “Landlord”), for the lease of the premises (the “Premises”), located
at Units 1302-1307, 13/F, Excellence Times Plaza Building, number
4068 Yitian Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,
PRC, for a term of 2 years from 13 June 2013 to 12 June 2015 at a
rental of RMB195,186.2 per month and subject to the increment of
5% in monthly rental in the second year. The Premises is used as the
headquarters in PRC for the Group.

The Landlord is the family member of Mr. Hu Zhixiong (the ultimate
beneficial owner of the substantial shareholder of the Company).
Therefore, the Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company.

Pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.37, the continuing connected
transactions listed above have been reviewed by the independent
non-executive Directors who have confirmed that the transactions
had been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(@] in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), the Company’s
independent auditors, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. HLB has issued a letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transaction disclosed above in accordance with relevant
clauses of Rule 20.38 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as mentioned above, there were no other non-exempted

connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the
Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers combined
accounted for 37% of the total revenue of the Group and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for 21% of the total
revenue of the Group. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
combined accounted for 29% of the total purchases for the Year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
10% of the total purchases for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors, substantial shareholders, and
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any conflicts of interest which had or might
have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”on page 29 of this annual report and“Share-based payment
transactions” in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes
in information of the Directors since 2012 annual report are set out

below:

Name of Directors
Mr. Leung Chi Kin

Mr. Chen Youhua

Ms. Xiong Yun Huan

Mr. Yan Shengxian

Mr. Bai Jian

Mr. Cai Da

Mr. Chen Liang

Details of Changes

Retired as an independent non-
executive Director, the member of
the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company with
effect from 26 November 2012

Appointed as executive Director
with effect from 26 November
2012

Appointed as executive Director
with effect from 26 November
2012

Appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the member of
the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company with
effect from 26 November 2012

Resigned as an executive Director
with effect from 16 May 2013

Appointed as executive Director
and vice Chairman with effect from
16 May 2013 and as CEO with effect
from 16 August 2013

Resigned as CEO with effect from
16 August 2013

Save as disclosed above, there were no substantial changes to the
information of Directors, including the directorships held in the last
three years in public companies, as disclosed under the section of
“Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of the 2012 Annual

Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 16 to 24 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee with reference to their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details of the scheme
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this report as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 38 to the consolidation financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, whose term of
office will retire upon the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors
of the Company for the subsequent year will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Mr. Cai Da
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 24 September 2013
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA NATURAL INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Natural
Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”’) set out on pages 36 to 131,
which comprise the consolidated and company statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Anauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
30 June 2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan T. S. Lai
Practising Certificate Number: P04165

Hong Kong, 24 September 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Are B M E A 2 s

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ2013F6 A30R IEFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BZ2013%F B ZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
IEFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
B IT BT
(restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue L ON 5 44,202,758 51,252,055
Cost of sales and services provided SHE RIRH AR A (29,880,620) (31,711,747)
Gross profit EF 14,322,138 19,540,308
Investment and other income B R EMUA 7 2,677,972 1,525,585
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIEER (3,294,021) (6,888,529)
Administrative expenses TRER (26,755,765) (29,167,733)
Other operating expenses HinEEEA (3,574,947) (5304,117)
Gain/(loss) arising on change in fair BEIEESIRE AN EE
value of held-for-trading investments FTEA W/ (EE) 2,594,400 (5,286,457)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W 34 1,084 727,801
Impairment losses recognised HEBEEERLZ
in respect of goodwill RIEBE 17 (5,200,000) (4,000,000)
Finance costs & R 8 (4,279,952) -
Share of profits of associates JE (Rt & 1 B)Sa ) 18 11,880,819 -
Loss before tax BRTAIEE (11,628,272) (28,853,142)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,(FX) 9 409,011 (428,577)
Loss for the year from REERBIFELEET
continuing operations 3= 11 (11,219,261) (29,281,719)
Discontinued operation BARILREER
Profit for the year from REFREEHKIE
discontinued operation LB RS 755 F 10 22,901,926 13,100,446
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF,(FE) 11,682,665 (16,181,273)

China Natural Investment Company Limited FE X RREFR LA F




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive (expense)/
income, net of income tax

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Gain arising on revaluation of property
transferred to investment property

Items that may reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating

foreign operations

Other comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Earnings/(loss) per share
For continuing and discontinued
operations

Basic and diluted (HK cents per share)

For continuing operations

Basic and diluted (HK cents per share)

Hitt2m(Bx%), W
RS

TEEN D EERm
ZIEH -

EHDBREREME
ZYFREL 2 W

HEZ AR EF H HE Rz
ZIEH -

BEBINEBEEL
PEH ERE

REER2E R, M -

HORR P 1S ML

FEERHEA
Wi, (B%)

AR ANEHAFE
L (ER)

ARREBANBEAFERE
mdas (F)

BRER,(FE)
EAR N EE (=B

KEFELERD

EARREE (BROEI)

= A
A

S N E A2 W RS

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R I(FFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZE20135F EHZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE

HK$ HKS

BT BT
(restated)

(&E5)

- 221,726

(228,693) -
(228,693) 221,726
11,453,972 (15,959,547)
11,682,665 (16,181,273)
11,453,972 (15,959,547)
0.4 (1.3)

(0.4) (2.4)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BIRRE

As at 30 June 2013
1201356308

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Goodwill

Interests in associates

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Held-for-trading investments
Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable
to owners of the Company

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board on 24 September 2013 and were signed on its

behalf by:
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Mr. Cai Da
BESL

Director

EE
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28(a)

As at As at

30 June 30 June
2013 2012
A20135F 720124
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS

BT BT
3,937,698 5,420,227

- 183,300,000
17,061,838 22,261,838
245,014,755 -
266,014,291 210,982,065
4,990,720 6,515,295
73,182,672 46,807,972
13,576,900 25,906,100
23,100 193,221
120,983,545 32,846,867
212,756,937 112,269,455
6,127,526 8,955,004
206,629,411 103,314,451
472,643,702 314,296,516
33,140 1,158,746
472,610,562 313,137,770
233,125,117 83,125,117
239,485,445 230,012,653
472,610,562 313,137,770

EE@R03FIALURZERERGEMBTEREK

TIEE - WAATALTRERESE

Mr. Chen Youhua
PREELE

Director

EE



Statement of Financial Position

AR

As at 30 June 2013
120136 A30H

As at As at
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
20135 R20124F
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKE 27 788 788

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE B B8 A R 108 27 440,783,646 292,381,123
Other receivables H fib e R I8 20 21,350,762 12,547,654
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 22 485,510 16,271,973
462,619,918 321,200,750
Current liabilities REEE

Amount due to a subsidiary JE A — R B A B 3R08 27 2,605,000 1,000,000
Other payables and accruals HMENFIERERER 23 1,690,170 182,753
4,295,170 1,182,753
Net current assets REBEEFE 458,324,748 320,017,997
Net assets EEFE 458,325,536 320,018,785

Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital [N 26 233,125,117 83,125,117
Reserves e 28(b) 225,200,419 236,893,668
Total equity fERBEE 458,325,536 320,018,785

Mr. Cai Da Mr. Chen Youhua
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARNEDE

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ2013F6 A30R IEFE

Balance at 1 July 2011

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total compreensive expense for the year

Issue of new shares by way of open offer
Share issue expenses

Balance at 30 June 2012
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expense for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of new shares by way of placing

Share issue expenses

Lapse of share options granted under
Right of First Refusal Agreement

Recognition of the equity component
of convertible notes

Deferred tax liability on recognition of
equity component of convertible notes

Conversion of convertible
notes to ordinary shares

Release of deferred tax liability upon
conversion of convertible notes

Balance at 30 June 2013

RONETRIB 2 &8

KEERR
REEAMRENE

FRERRHARN

ARYERSTIHR
RIEIRX

R012F6 A0 2 B
AERRA
AEEEMRARY

RERAEEN

EEMSTLR
DAUEHTH
FRERREEGE
it BBERN
BRTARRE
LRETD
BATARRE B
FhERRERE
TERRRAA
EER
FRTARERS
BOETHARE

0136 A8 2 B8

Share
capital

Share
premium
kit
&
HKS

B

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share
options
reserve

BhRE

revaluation

FLAREARE

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

ikt

Property

reserve

Convertible

Accumulated
losses

notes
reserve

TER

55416745 296335047 837,29 - - - (60624373) 29194714

- - - - - - (16181273)  (16181.273)

- - - 01726 - - - 01726

- - - 01726 - - (16181273)  (15959547)

27708312 11083349 - - - - - B9

- (1659118) - - - - - (165918
83,125,117 305,759,278 837,295 21,726 - - (76,805,646) 313,137,770
- - - - - - 11,682,665 11,682,665
- - - (221,726)  (228,693) - 221,726 (228,693)

- - - (221,726)  (228,693) - 11904391 11453972
50,000,000 - - - - - - 50,000,000
- (1,928,690) - - - - - (1,928,690)

- - (837,295) - - - 837,295 -

- - - - - 44,581,533 - 44,581,533
- - - - - (7,954,284) - (7,954.284)
100,000,000 (52,490) - - - (43,875341) - 56,072,169
- - - - - 1,248,092 - 7,248,092
233125117 303,778,098 - - (228,693) - (64063960) 472,610,562
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Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) for the year
Adjustments for:

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Interest income
Dividend income
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Share of profits of associates

Impairment losses recognised on trade

and other receivables
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of goodwill

Gain arising on change in fair value

of investment properties
Write-off of property, plant

and equipment
Write-off of inventories

Movements in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade
and other receivables

Decrease in held-for-trading
investments

Decrease in trade and
other payables

Cash used in operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R I(FFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012

B ZE2013F HZE20126F

6H30H 6H30H
IEFE LEFE
HK$ HKS

BT BT
(restated)

(&ZE5)
11,682,665 (16,181,273)
(288,220) 938,015
(2,498,374) (391,241)
(58,075) (8,000)
1,668,619 2,237,670
4,279,952 -
(22,507,345) (727,801)
(11,880,819) -
- 783,768

5,200,000 4,000,000
- (21,865,750)

- 1,347,036

1,186,641 465,205
(13,214,956) (29,402,371)
337,934 (1,710,702)
(7,989,402) 6,683,653
12,329,200 4,180,192
(1,374,898) (4,129,886)
(9,912,122) (24,379,114)
- (2,202,405)
(9,912,122) (26,581,519)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ2013F6 A30R IEFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZE20135F HZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
IEFE IEFE
HKS$ HKS
BT SIT
(restated)
(E7)
Cash flows from investing activities REZERERE
Subscription of First Right Shares RIBH A N R BEERD 18
in an associate (17,000,000) -
Payments for investment properties B -C/EWANEN (6,877,795) (16,094,250)
Payments for property, plant Y E eSS WA NE N
and equipment (533,715) (2,755,611)
Advances of loan receivables JEULE B TK (9,893,200) (12,000,000)
Deposits paid in respect of proposed  HREIEIUIEBIERAR 2 B[RS 20
acquisition of Target Company (7,940,000) (23,000,000)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYESHIE
investment properties - 4,800,000
Net cash (outflow)/inflow on disposal ~ HEMB AR ZIRE
of subsidiaries GRi),/ WA 34 (5,487,588) 2,046,342
Dividends received B R 58,075 8,000
Interest received BUFIE 1,513,456 391,241
Net cash used in investing activities KB RE TR F5 (46,160,767) (46,604,278)
Cash flows from financing activities BIEFEIRSRE
Proceeds from issue of new shares NFEEMEITHRZ
by way of open offer FriS kI8 - 38,791,721
Proceeds from issue of new shares LS FTEE1 TR 2
by way of placing Fri5 5008 50,000,000 -
Proceeds from issue of convertible BT MR RE 2
notes FR1S#0I8 100,000,000 -
Share issue expenses IR EITR (1,928,690) (1,659,118)
Convertible notes issue expenses AN R I TR (3,626,250) -
Net cash generated BB RSN ER
by financing activities 144,445,060 37,132,603
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HERBSSEYEM,
and cash equivalents (R2) 55 88,372,171 (36,053,194)
Effect of exchange rate changes ERESEHTE (235,493) -
Cash and cash equivalents FINEERESEEY
at the beginning of year 32,846,867 68,900,061
Cash and cash equivalents FRNESRESZEEY
at the end of year 22 120,983,545 32,846,867
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GENERAL

China Natural Investment Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The accounting policies and methods of computation used
in these financial statements are the same as those followed
in the preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012, except for the following
amendments to HKFRSs that the Group has applied for the
first time in the current year and which have a material effect
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2N =y FIX R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A308 LF/E

—RER
TERXAREARARB(ARE D THRE
REHBARERASHEEMK L RE
BReARETAR  URERHNE B
BRGAARRA (B AIZR A
ER) LM - ARARZEMMERLEE
BRIV AERI AR ER | —EHWE -

ARBB—EREERQF  EX2WE
RALZEFEHPRAR B M T IRRMFE37 -

BBHmRLBT(BITDZEY  BLTA
ARBNPEER - AEREASERATT
BEAG KRR  SHEBIAMBER
RZBEBHNEHERZ AR E -

FERFIEREETEBMBRESE
B[ &8 B REZER )

ZEMBREMEANS I BERTE R
RERRAEEMEE20129F6 A30B IEEE
ZEEMERERMEEEMRR - HATE
B BHREEN(ER]) HAEBEAFE
BREATHZERAMISREMSAZH
BEHEEEATE -

Annual Report 2013 38 43




44

nﬂ'\

BRI

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A30B IFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 titled Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income in the current year. The amendments introduce new
terminology for the statement of comprehensive income
and income statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1,
the ‘statement of comprehensive income’is renamed as the
'statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’
and the ‘income statement’ is renamed as the ‘statement of
profit or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option
to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
2009 - 2011 Cycle!
HKFRS 1

(Amendments) First-time adoption of HKFRS

- Government Loans'

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 20

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance'

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?
Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements!
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities!
Fair Value Measurement!
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-financial Assets?
Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’
Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial
Statements'

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine!

Levies®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A30B IFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debtinvestments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a significantimpact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes
a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A30B IFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)
HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interest in Joint Ventures. HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC) - Int
13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions
by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the effective date of
HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified
as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast,
under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements:
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS
11 are required to be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31
can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting
or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided all of these standards are applied at the
same time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 July 2013. The application of
these five standards may have a significant impact on the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
A detailed review will be performed by the directors to
determine and quantify the impact on the application of these
five standards.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

Thedirectors anticipate that the application of the new standard
may affect certain amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the related
disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off”and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the related
disclosures (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods
within those annual periods. The disclosures should be
provided retrospectively for all comparative periods. However,
the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities in the future.

Other than those as described above, the directors anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material effect on the Group's financial performance
and position and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). In addition, the
consolidated financial statementsinclude applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ("GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for assets as explained in the accounting
policies below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost; (ii) derecognises the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with any
resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to accumulated losses as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests'proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the "measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see
the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Ondisposal of therelevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

China Natural Investment Company Limited Bl X AR E G R A T

EREHBER)

RBEQRZRE
BERRSAEEANHETEEAZE
N BYEMBRBEN G ERRERZ
B - EAFERSARSERKRET Y
T R @R - A IRR ) S R R B X
FHRK -

BERRzRERAERBBERAESES
FOARFAZEMBHmEK - ERIEENER
FHEEE - AIRIBEBM RS ERES5H
FFIFHEZ R EERBKIUBEXEF
AR - RIFHERE - RBZERRZRER
ARG E M BEHRR BRI SRR - HiR
PR AN E G E QR Bl KA
2EREEH R o WA EES —E
ERAEEBLERZBE AR ZER(E
RERAKRASRERZB 2 ARKREFE
— WMoz ERRBER) - AIAREEELE
REBEZE-TEE - WAKBEELE
EREEETHRRZBERRNK - 77
SATERRERINES S

Wi B8 AN HER M B H B SR 2 AN SR B A
—HBERRZABMBIEE AERKA
BEZRAFFEZEREENKE A HE
RABEE  FARBZEEE - AREE
HZABHNEE BERIRBBEZAF
FEBBYERA - REHFER AN
RBas P HER -

BREGFENERRETEAREERS
VEERAANEEN —HEERRRE 2R
BEE WAELE  AIBKRE(BERBE)
ZEBMEREEFERE-BERBESEA
FERIF 365 & E R EE B BRA R E S
BMEAEBEERRATFEREEREAZES

F)RAREENFAA T RIE - ERIHER
MEEBEBREREE D - HEEE
BzAalREeRBEM - ARESE LSS

RIS 365 MR LB AR IR M -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing
significantinfluence overthatassociate, any retained investment
is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the previous carrying amount of the associate attributable
to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses
significant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following circumstances are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the
services are rendered, the revenue can be reliably estimated
and it is probable that the revenue will be received.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless itis clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

. exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

Forthe purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
is re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees and others providing
similar services in an equity-settled share-based payment
arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vestimmediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and
variable overhead expenses, are determined on a first-in-first-
out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination
Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are
initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date. At the
end of the subsequent reporting periods, such contingent
liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL") and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All reqular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 33.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EHZ=2013F6 A30RA LEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting
policy below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A30B IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

China Natural Investment Company Limited Bl X AR E G R A F)

ERETBER)

SMIAE)

tHEERERTAE)

CIE Y eSS
RRRIFETZES LA ERED (AT
BEB)IRBANLTHZHEERSRARE
EBEATAZEEMAMNAEREHAR
Ktz o MBHREEGEBABR TSR
Rekmn—HeMEELNETEHE 2K
RAAGEATEGEH - AIRBEATH -

RETHE AaEMY 22 FEREUT
AMBETAZRITHENRGEE - LEE
HEBHKAREENERNEAARRSA
B BEERERE AR T AT AEH
ALk e

WO B R BRNREBEREE
BITAZAFEFHNREES S EEME
E o RIS HREEREED PR
RREAR - BRERTAEHE - 1o
WO RED c BRMER —BERENE
BN EEERMREITESLL - MAL
BAT ERSTERIIEHRBERE
Btn i (8 o 38 % AR Al R AR R IR 2 58
BRETE  ERSTHRIAZGEHKE
BRERGERE EERBREERIIH
B FeERaEREAREREE -

BT MREBE BEX U AGLAEF
RIERBZ RS - nEERERER
BBy o A D Z R SR A B RN E
MR - AER D ZHBERXZKAG AR
By 2 REE  YRABRERREZFH
RIABRR AR -

BRmRIE N FIEARZ @A E
EEMBERTSERE SREFEEIIE
ERBERaREAFEARZEREE
BlgrBAKBEEREATEARZER
BfE-



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

. itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Afinancial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Ffinancial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 33.
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HZE2013F6A30B IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables
and amount due to a subsidiary) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person,

(a) has controls or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or
(@] isamember of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(ii) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EHZ2013F6 A30A LEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 3. EEETEEE)

Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(i) the party is an entity where any of the following (i) ZATREE TINEA —E GG 2
conditions applies: (continued) HEE (&)

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of (b) —EBERAHEMEE(HEM
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or BEEMNGQF - BAR
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); BRWE QRS QTR

HEERT

(©  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of © ZERUEAREERR-F=
the same third party; FRAEE QT

(d)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity d —ERBAF-FEENGE
and the other entity is an associate of the third DA MEMEBARE=A
entity; BERNEBE AR

(e)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (e) ZEBAKILEREBAG
for the benefit of employees of either the g DAREBE N AEEE
Group or an entity related to the Group; MBEEER ZEBRNM

(f) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (f) ZERBZOAHERIA TS
a person identified in (i); and S HEES &

(g  a person identified in (i)(a) has significant @ RO@FF#NALTHZELR
influence over the entity or is a member of FERTENNEZER
the key management personnel of the entity (HZEBNGRA)FEE
(or of a parent of the entity). EBEKE o

Close members of the family of a person are those family EATHRIGEFKRERTEHEER ZE
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced TEHEFEZALTRIZZATEZENRK
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. A -

Cash and cash equivalents RekAELEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MG HeRERMNE  RERBELEE
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand MBEFEREREHATFAR—RREA
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are %=1aAR WE'JHEZ—I@EH—?LW‘EEﬂfE%E
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject REBEBRERRTANE fm &R

to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short NEE - HBRZRERE  TAXS .IE
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, SEENEEZ IR

which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of

the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial REBRAERMS - REeRFASEEDE
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand FFERBTR(BR/REREFET LS

and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in S AUUMEERTZRENEE -
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revisions affect only that period, or in the period of the
revisions and future periods if the revisions affect both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that management has made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EHZ=2013F6 A30A LLFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 16, the investment properties were
revalued at the end of the reporting period on market value
existing use basis by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing
operations is as follows:

5.

Provision of diagnostic testing RN RAREEIRTS -

and healthcare services, BLERIEEERD
manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products

Provision of advertising and

public relations services

RHES R ARBRYE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Healthcare and pharmaceutical — Provision of diagnostic
testing and healthcare services, manufacturing and
sale of pharmaceutical products

Advertising and public relations - Provision of
advertising and public relations services

The property investment operation was discontinued in the
current year. The segment information reported on the next
pages does not include any amounts for the discontinued
operation, which are described in more detail in note 10.
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30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BZ2013F HZE20129F
6H30H 6H30H
IEFE

ILFE
HK$ HKS
B ITT BIT

(restated)
(s&=5)

22,350,895 25,222,535
21,851,863 26,029,520
44,202,758 51,252,055
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZE2013F6 A30R IEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZTHEEHRG®E)
Segment revenue and results PEBARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results INTAREBEEZMA B HEREER
from continuing operations by reportable segment. WARFEE 2D -
Segment revenue Segment results
PERA DEEE
Year ended Year ended  Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012
EZE2013F HZE201F #HE2013F  HZE20129F
6H30H 64308 6H30H 6H30H
LHEE EFE LHFE FFE
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
(restated) (restated)
¢ ==vl)) (&=&7)
Healthcare and pharmaceutical — {R{E M 85 22,350,895 25,222,535 | (10,795,710) |  (13,367,660)
Advertising and public relations  EE R ABEEIE 21,851,863 26,029,520 | (6,107,138) (4,644,663)
Total for continuing operations ~ FHBACE ¥ 4E58 44,202,758 | 51,252,055 | (16,902,848)| (18012,323)
Share of profits of associates JEAET & N Bl m T 11,880,819 -
Investment and other income BE REMBA 2,677,972 1,525,585
Gain/(loss) arising on change in -~ 3HEEBERERATFE
fair value of held-for-trading SEMEE
investments W/ (Ei8) 2,594,400 (5,286,457)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEKIBA 72 Ukes 1,084 727,801
Central administrative costs I RITHRFI X (11,879,699) |  (7,807,748)
Loss before tax BRTLAIEE
(continuing operations) (BECEER) (11,628,272) | (28,853,142)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue FHERMDERARBKBINATRL 2
generated from external customers. There were no inter- A o RN FE R 9 $A 8 5 (20124 ¢
segment sales in the current year (2012: nil). ).
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the RN SRTEGR BN sE3FT il v AN &
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Bre2itBk—H - pEEBEEEEYE
Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each segment FREA 218 - WARD B E QR
without allocation of share of profits of associates, investment A HEREMKA - BHEEEREAF
and other income, gain/(loss) arising on change in fair value of BEgHmMELE 2 WE (BE) - LEW
held-for-trading investments, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, BARzWE « RRITHASZ RETEHE
central administrative costs and income tax credit/(expense). %/ (AX) - WHERTEHEEDERRSE
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision RIED BB R MFE D ERIB 2 HH -

maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R IFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZTHEEHRG®E)
Segment assets and liabilities PEEERAE
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
R2013F 20124
6A30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT PSTT
(restated)
(#=5)
Segment assets DHEE
Healthcare and pharmaceutical Y& 14,007,323 17,262,515
Advertising and public relations EERABBEEF 23,318,135 37,524,869
Total segment assets BHEEE 37,325,458 54,787,384
Assets relating to property investment  EA¥ERE B EE
(now discontinued) (IRE&IE) - 188,835,717
Unallocated AAE 441,445,770 79,628,419
Consolidated assets REERE 478,771,228 323,251,520
Segment liabilities DHEE
Healthcare and pharmaceutical IRIE N 2 2,745,283 4,425,775
Advertising and public relations EER A BEAFR 1,208,176 2,906,777
Total segment liabilities BOEEE 3,953,459 7,332,552
Liabilities relating to property HYERERBBE
investment (now discontinued) WE4IE) - 2,501,853
Unallocated Aok 2,207,207 279,345
Consolidated liabilities mARARE 6,160,666 10,113,750
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REZHSBRRARDESERZER
allocating resources between segments:
All assets are allocated to operating segments other . BASEEE(EEREREE AT
than unallocated assets (mainly comprising interests ZHEE  FIEEERE LE T AM
in associates, held-for-trading investments and certain BB MIRe MRS EEY )N
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents). FIBEEANETKE N - &
Goodwill is allocated to segments as described in note 7R D BRESE &
17; and
All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . BRARSEBE(XZBRFRELTIER
than unallocated liabilities (mainly comprising deferred ERETHMENKIE)IN - IEE
tax liabilities and certain other payables). BN TREEDSE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

DEER (&)
Hivn BEH

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZ2013F B ZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
IEFE IEFE
HKS$ HKS
BT BIT
(restated)
(g&=5)
Depreciation E
Healthcare and pharmaceutical RIE I B 1,037,745 1,406,199
Advertising and public relations EE N ABBEIER 498,730 557,838
Unallocated depreciation ROBITE 86,742 191,460
Total At 1,623,217 2,155,497
Additions to non-current assets REFREEE
Healthcare and pharmaceutical N EYNE T 442,444 682,582
Advertising and public relations EERABBE 2,402 603,638
Unallocated non-current assets RAOBLIEMENE E 88,869 997,688
Total A&t 533,715 2,283,908
Impairment losses recognised HEEBEERZ
in respect of goodwill SR 1B 1A
Advertising and public relations EE N ABBEER 5,200,000 4,000,000

Geographical information

& & R

Substantially all of the Group's revenue from continuing REBBRIBHOWALKRBINAER 27
operations from external customers and non-current assets are BICEETS - MIERBEEAMREE -
located in Hong Kong, the directors consider the presentation EEZRABEZRMEER -

of geographical information unnecessary.
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R IFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from continuing operations from customers of

corresponding years contributing over 10% of total revenue

of the Group is as follows:

Customer A’
Customer B!

ZPEA
=B

! Revenue from healthcare and pharmaceutical.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% or

more to the Group’s revenue from continuing operations in

the respective year.

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME

Continuing operations

Interest income on bank deposits

Other interest income

Dividend income from listed
investments

Services income

Sundry income

RITEARFEWA

HAb S A

KB LMEREEBERZ
B B A

ARFSHLA

FETERULA

2EER )
TEEFEN

REEFERN  EAKREZWRABI0%L
KEFEFPRHEQERBZWAMT

Year ended
30 June
2013
BZ2013F
6A30H
LEE

HK$
BT

TiE e
6,924,569

Year ended
30 June
2012
HZE2012F
6H30H
IEFE

HKS

ETT

A RS B 2 A e

. RIBEFEEAR  BEKALEFBA
SERBEFELEER ZWABI0%HK

LAE °

RERHEMUYA
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
B Z2013F HZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
ILFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
(restated)
(&=751)
4,561 139,321
2,493,414 240,003
18,975 -
- 540,000
161,022 606,261
2,677,972 1,525,585
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZE2013F6 A30R IEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. EEMAX

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZE20135F B ZE2012F

6H30H 6308
EEE EFE
HK$ HKS
BT BT

Continuing operations BFEREXEL
Effective interest expense GIESi &t d
on convertible notes BEEMNERZ 4,279,952 -
9.  INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9. FBBESR) X
Income tax recognised in profit or loss REBBZFRERIZFAEHR
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BZ2013F B Z=2012F
6H30H 6H30H
LHEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT PETT
(restated)
(&BE5))
Continuing operations BEREEL
Current tax: B HINE
Hong Kong profits tax HEENEH 367,571 395,437
Over provision in prior year: MBS R
Hong Kong profits tax BEAEMNEH (56,823) -
Deferred tax (note 24): R IE (i 5E24) :
Current year REE (719,759) 33,140
Total income tax recognised RIBRPERZ
in profit or loss Frisiisasa (409,011) 428,577
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BEARERIEMEFEE 2 (G5 EAR R
assessable profit for both years. M Z165%:1& o
Subsidiaries operating in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") RPZEARZME(HEHDEEZHBA
are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both years. A M B F S 7R B AN 25% ) R B I ¥ AT S
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates o HinRlEEREE ZHIBTIIREHE A
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. AEREE 2 IRITI R E o
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R IFFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 9. FBBER) BXH)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss (continued) REZFEIZMEH(F)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to loss before AFEzHRETHEGEBEERAMEE
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Wk 2 BRIATBE 2 HIRAT

comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZ2013F B ZE20124F
6A30H 6H30H
LLEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
(restated)
(FeE=51)
Loss before tax PR BT E 1R
(from continuing operations) (REFESEER) (11,628,272) (28,853,142)
Tax at Hong Kong profits BEBFNERE165%
tax rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) (2ow 29F S 16.5% )t ERTIE (1,918,665) (4,760,768)
Tax effect of expenses not MR HH B E
deductible for tax purpose 924,981 2,569,241
Tax effect of income not BARBBANHBEE
taxable for tax purpose (947,185) (76,845)
Tax effect of temporary REREREZENTELE
differences not recognised 150,125 156,555
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FRIERFRISE BT ISTE 3,473,049 2,535,628
Tax effect of share of FEAG B & A RLR IR
profits of associates Mg (1,960,335) -
Effect of different tax rates REBAINRLERE R
of the group entities operating SEEETE
in jurisdictions other than TR ER R E
Hong Kong (66,853) -
Over provision in prior year BAFE B (56,823) -
Others Hth (7,305) 4,766
Income tax (credit)/expense for the REEEHR(EE), X
year (relating to continuing (ERBERE )
operations) (409,011) 428,577
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZE2013F6 A30R IEFE

9.  INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 9. FIBHUESR) BX#)
Income tax recognised directly in equity HEERERRIZAER
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZ2013F B E20126F
6A30H 6H30H
LEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
A ITT PETT
Deferred tax ELERE
Arising on transactions with owners:  BIEB A 2 R BEE
Initial recognition of the equity IR AT R R IR
component of convertible notes 2 EmEbn 7,954,284 -
Released upon conversion HR AT AR SRR R R Bk
of convertible notes (7,248,092) -
Total income tax recognised EERERERZ
directly in equity Frigiiiesa 706,192 -
10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 10. ERULEKEXEK
Disposal of property investment operation HENEREEK
During the current year, the Company entered into a sale RAREE  AARFIVHEHBEALE
agreement to dispose of Million Worldwide Investment Limited Million Worldwide Investment Limited K Eff}
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Million Worldwide Group”), B 2 Al (G R Million WorldwidefE & | - 5
which carried out all of the Group's property investment NEAEBFBEMEREER) - HEEIH
operation. The disposal was completed on 10 December 2012, R2012F12H10H TR » MYEREEK
on which date control of the property investment operation ZHEHRZBEETAEA CHEZE
passed to the acquirer. Details of the assets and liabilities ErBEZHBREE ZBRTERKE
disposed of, and the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, 344 FE o

are disclosed in note 34.

The results of the property investment operation included in FPARFE G o ERE LB EES
the profit for the year are set out below. R e
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

CRIERERK @)
FEEREERLQEERZHER

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 10.

Profit for the year from discontinued operation

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BZ2013F B ZE20129F
6A30H 6H30H
LHEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
B ITT PSTT
Revenue WA 2,520,283 5,993,129
Cost of services provided FiriE S AR A AR (148,386) (373,353)
Gross profit EF 2,371,897 5,619,776
Investment and other income & N H A A 40,585 89,811
Administrative expenses THER (1,327,539) (5,068,536)
Other operating expenses Hiv 2 EEM (568,487) (821,957)
Loss arising on change in fair value HIEEEREQATEE
of held-for-trading investments FrEE 4 2 518 - (8,074,960)
Gain arising on change in fair "EWMENFELS)
value of investment properties FrEEA 2 Was - 21,865,750
Profit before tax B 5 A& A 516,456 13,609,884
Attributable income tax expense FE(RETS A (120,791) (509,438)
395,665 13,100,446
Gain on disposal of operation % W
(note 34) (F43E34) 22,506,261 -
Profit for the year from discontinued ~ ARFER BB 4% 1E
operation (attributable to RE TS 2 A
owners of the Company) (KRAFHEAE AL 22,901,926 13,100,446
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

CRIEEERK @)
REERECRILRERH 2B (E)

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 10.

Profit for the year from discontinued operation (continued)

Profit for the year from discontinued operation has been

AEERBEREEEER 2mEFNEH

arrived at after changing/(crediting):

bR (HE%)ATHER :

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
#HZ2013F EHZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
ILFE IEFE
HKS HKS
B IT BT
Gross rental income from SEEZ BES WA
investment properties (2,520,283) (5,993,129)
Less: direct operating expenses B EESERY 148,386 373,353
(2,371,897) (5,619,776)
Employee benefits expense: EEREAAX :
Other staff's salaries and allowances — Efth 8 T # & NI2AL 417,600 2,336,898
Other staff's retirement benefits H B TRIK
scheme contributions BHRET B 19,440 60,433
Other staff's welfare HEE TEFH 4,451 31,458
Total employee benefits expense EEENEBEHRXZ 441,491 2,428,789
Depreciation of property, W - BE&
plant and equipment BiEiTE 45,402 82,173
Operating lease rentals in respect HERAEZ
of rented premises KEHERS 100,000 626,475

Cash flows from discontinued operation

EREREXEBRERE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
#ZE20135F EHZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
LEFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Net cash inflows from LEVESR AR € F5E
operating activities 544,297 13,115,398
Net cash outflows from "EFRERER S FRE
investment activities (6,481,920) (11,746,037)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows R,/ mARES FH (5,937,623) 1,369,361
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

11.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS

11.

Loss for the year from continuing operations has been arrived

at after charging:

FEEREFALEER 2ER

AEEREFBREEBZBEEHBRT

SITER :

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BZ2013F B E20124F
6H30H 6H30H
IEFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
B IT BT
(restated)
(&%)
Employee benefits expense: EERMFAX -
Directors’emoluments (note 12) =2 (FH5E12) 2,299,248 1,712,452
Other staff's salaries and allowances — Hfth B T#r& K28 21,637,543 26,090,058
Other staff's retirement benefits Hh 8 TRIK
scheme contributions AT B 436,823 801,693
Other staff's welfare H 8 TEFH 135,337 154,377
Total employee benefits expense EEENER 24,508,951 28,758,580
Auditors’ remuneration ZHENE® 430,000 480,000
Depreciation of property, plant M - WE R
and equipment REITE 1,623,217 2,155,497
Impairment losses recognised BEtATEMEEER ]2
on trade and other receivables g 5 K H A W RIA
(included in “other 2 BERRERE
operating expenses”) - 783,768
Operating lease rentals in respect HERAZE2KEHERS
of rented premises 5,059,510 3,875,473
Write-off of property, plant and BEtATEMEEER ]2
equipment (included ME - WE &R EMAR
in “other operating expenses”) - 1,347,036
Write-off of inventories (included BETAIEE R
in “cost of sales and TR AR TS AR A
services provided”) ZIFEMER 1,186,641 465,205
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZE2013F6 A30R IEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ BEERTETHAENE
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12.

ENSENSEEREE
mF -

TTBRABH#ME

the chief executive were as follows:

Other emoluments

A€
Salaries and Contributions
other to retirement
benefits  benefits scheme
HER BIRER
At ER B
HKS HKS
BT B
Year ended 30 June 2013 BZ2013F6A30A LFE
Executive directors YTES
M. Li Wai Hung (Chairman) ZERREE(ZE) - 240,000 12,000 252,000
Mr. Chen Liang (note (i) PRse 58 4 (M) - 831,000 15,000 846,000
Mr. Bai Jian (note (iv) TRER A (BisEGy) - 311,417 13,750 325,167
Mr. Chen Youhua (note (i) Mﬁéﬁi( D)) - 452,575 - 452,575
Ms. Xiong Yun Huan (note (i) BEER L (FEE) - 122,050 - 122,050
Mr. Cai Da (note (ii)) ﬁ-&%i(m? (i) - 121,290 - 121,290
Independent non-executive directors Zﬁi%iﬂfﬁ%?
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (note (i) FHERE(ME0) 60,000 - - 60,000
Mr. Leung Chi Kin (note (vi)) /ﬂfﬁﬂ(ﬁﬁ B)) 24,333 - - 24,333
Mr. Tam B Ray Billy (note (v)) B E (W) 60,000 - - 60,000
Mr. Yan Shengxian (note (ii)) BAEB LA M) 35,833 - - 35,833
180,166 2,078,332 40,750 2,299,248
Year ended 30 June 2012 HE015F6A0ALEE
Executive directors HITES
M. Li Wai Hung (Chairman) FRBEE(EE) - 217934 10,800 228,734
Mr. Chen Liang (note (1) B S () - 306,451 5,250 311,701
Mr. Bai Jian (note (iv)) SR - 153,226 5250 158,476
Mr. U Man long (note (vii) T B A (i) - 94,667 - 94,667
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary (viil) R R 5t A (P R (vit) - 403,200 12250 415450
Ms. Wu Mei Chu (note (ix)) HER L L (M) - 303333 4333 307,666
Independent non-executive directors E_L?Fﬁﬂﬁ Bz
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (note (i) ZEEEE () 30,645 - - 30,645
Mr. Leung Chi Kin (note (vi) ZEERL A () 60,000 - - 60,000
Mr. Tam B Ray Billy (note (v)) B E (W) 38,500 - - 38,500
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman (note (x)) BR % 0 HE (PRE0) 53613 - - 53613
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong (note (i) AFE R R E (M) 13,000 - - 13,000
195,758 1478811 37,883 1712452
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12.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Appointed on 28 December 2011.
(ii) Appointed on 26 November 2012.
(iii) Appointed on 16 May 2013.

(iv) Appointed on 28 December 2011 and resigned on 16 May
2013.

(v) Appointed on 10 November 2011.
(vi) Retired on 26 November 2012.
(vii) Resigned on 22 November 2011.
(viii) Resigned on 21 June 2012.

(ix) Resigned on 10 November 2011.

(x) Resigned on 29 March 2012.

During the year, Mr. Chen Liang is also the chief executive and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments during the year (2012: nil).

12.

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE2013F6A308 LFE

EERTEITHRAEME#)
BRT :

0] 201112 A28AREE -

(ii) 2012611 26 AL T -

(iif) 20135 A 16 B BRI -

(iv) HR2011F12 828 BEZ(E + KA20134F5
A16BEHT -

) 2011E 1T AI0ARERE -
(vi) 2012911 26 HR(E ©
(i) RR2011F 1 H22BBHE -
(i) RR20129F6 A21 REHE -
(ix) 2011411 A10HBHE ©

(x) 201293 5290 BHT -

AEE BRREAENSEIETBRAR &
AR EME BRE AT RITRARRR
RERBHME -

FRESITHRAE RTMAE (20125 :
DM ERCHE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

13. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 13. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBRAUSERMEHATH - —f1(2012
Group, one (2012: none) was a director of the Company whose FHB)RARAEST(BREZMERN EX
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 12 above. MIEE128 88 ) © 8 TR (20124F + A7) A
The emoluments of the remaining four (2012: five) individual TZBemT

were as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZ2013F HZE20126F
6H30H 6H30H
LHEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
A ITT BIT
Salaries and other benefits e kHAMmER 3,234,419 4,006,243
Contributions to retirement RIREAET B
benefits scheme 60,000 57,800
3,294,419 4,004,043
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HBEHEMBERESEERNT
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZ2013F B ZE20124F
6H30H 6H30H
LLFE IEFE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,00078 7T 1 1
4 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FAREEUES N TFEMNESHZOS
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals EEME AT (BIEESEREES) (2012F ¢
(including directors and employees) as an inducement to join ) VE R IR S| I A Sk p H i AR &9 22 ok
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of TEREREZHIE -

office (2012: nil).
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

e PR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

14. BREF(HE)
REFACEXBERECRIEEERR
ARBEREARGEEREAREERN,
(B8R THRA T8RS

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZ20135F EHZE2012%F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Earnings/(loss) BR(FB8)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose RERERLEE
of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) &R,/ (EE)hs 2
per share (profit/(loss) for the year BT,/ (&)
attributable to owners G /NS ZEPN
of the Company) JE(RAEEER,(E518)) 11,682,665 (16,181,273)
Number of Number of
shares shares
B A b 4E]
Number of shares BRAEE
Weighted average number of MERRER R EE
ordinary shares for the purpose &N,/ (BN 2
of basic and diluted AR N I8
earnings/(loss) per share 2,673,461,242 1,220,686,649

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 30 June 2013 does not assume the conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since their exercise
would result in an increase in earnings per share. In addition,
the computation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share for
the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as the
exercise price of those options are higher than the average
market prices of the Company’s shares during the years.

STEEHZE2013F6 A30H I FE 2 R EE
BFEERETELIRADE MR LB ZA
Bl ES  BABEBERBERERAT
o AN - FFEEZ=2013F &2012F6 A
SR FEZBRBEERTN(HE)KFR
BWBITHEARRB 2 RITHEERE AR
ZEERENTEESRARRBRMDRE
BFEFHTE -
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AR E M HRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZE2013F6 A30R IEFE

14.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
is based on the following data:

BRI (EE)
KAFIHAE AN
NEEHEF,(EE)
Less: R
REFREEK L
Ei v

Earnings/(loss)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Loss for the purpose of basic

and diluted loss per share FRERLEE
from continuing operations EEims 2 B8

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for continuing
operations for the year ended 30 June 2013 does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible
bonds since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss
per share. In addition, the computation of the diluted loss
per share for continuing operations for the years ended 30
June 2013 and 2012 does not assume the exercise of the
Company's outstanding share options as the exercise price of
those options are higher than the average market prices of
the Company’s shares during the years.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operation is HK0.9 cent per share (2012: HK1.1 cents per
share), based on the profit for the year from the discontinued
operation of HK$22,901,926 (2012: HK$13,100,446) and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share.
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SRERN(EE) &)
RESECEES
AATEEANEERABECLER S
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Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZE2013F HZE20126F
6H30H 6H30H
IEFE LEFE
HK$ HKS

BT BIT
11,682,665 (16,181,273)
(22,901,926) (13,100,446)
(11,219,261) (29,281,719)

PTADEHE F XX AR EERERR
BEEBERER -

FTEEZE2013F6A30B I FEZHFEKE
EBTREEHERRRTERLIBAAR
MARBZIRERES  BABBLBRE
BHEREEBRD - I FFEEH E2013
FR2012F6A30B EFEZHELEER
FRBEEENBRVETERRRZE
TEERE AAZEBERENTFEES
RARRRMNEETE 2 FHIHE -

REBRIEEETR

BRI EER SR ERNRBERF A
& 109 112012 « OB ) - Th
BREAFEREERILEEER 2 G F
22,901,926/ 7T (20124F © 13,100,446 70 ) &
ENHEREARREERF Gl 2 55T

= o
Ean



15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost

Balance at T July 2011
Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries

Transfer to investment property
Disposal of assets

Balance at 30 June 2012
Additions
Disposal of subsidiaries

Balance at 30 June 2013

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Balance at 1 July 2011

Depreciation expense

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries

Transfer to investment property
Eliminated on disposal of assets

Balance at 30 June 2012
Depreciation expense

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries

Balance at 30 June 2013

Carrying amounts
Balance at 30 June 2013

Balance at 30 June 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

P0NETR1B 2 B8
e

HENBLR
HATRENE
LESE

101256 A308 2 &%
NE

HENBAT

pa)

1013F6A308 2 %

RHFEREE

PONETR1B 2 B
EBH
IEERBLAIRL
HATRENE

P EBER

12012F6A308 2 &
TEEH

PMEER BRI
1013F6 308 2 &

REE
M013ECA08 2 ks

01256 A308 2 4

Land and
buildings

1R
L 5
HKS
AT

AR SRR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R IFFE

15. % BERRE
AEE

Office

equipment,
furniture Motor
and fixtures vehicles

ERZE HAR
B %  EEkE RE
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT

Laboratory  Leasehold
equipment improvements

757,143 3915485 3158216 217921 134959 10,145074

- 190632 684,123 1880856 - 2755611
- - (354800) (235799) - (590599)
(757143) - - - - (757,143)
- (1826,721) (1,348,356) (335,050) - (3510127)

- 2,2793% 2,139,183 3489278 134959 8042816

- 26470 - 507,245 - 533715
- - - (452726) - (452726)

- 2,305,806 2,139,183 3543797 134959 8,123,805
44167 1886221 191336 481013 102042 2704779
34702 523074 543512 1,103,465 32917 2237670
- - (30979 (46921) - (77.900)
(78:869) - - - - (78:869)
- (1715438) (209326) (238327) - (2163091)

- 693857 494543 1299230 134959 2,622,589

- 402321 406295 860,003 - 1668619
- - - (105,101) - (105,101)

- 109,178 900,838 2054132 134959 4,186,107

- 1,209,688 1,238,345 1,489,665 - 3,937,698

- 1585539 1644640 2,190,048 - 5420227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MBS HRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Land and buildings

Laboratory equipment
Leasehold improvements

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

5%

20%

20% or over
the relevant
lease terms,
whichever
is shorter
20% — 40%

25%

At fair value RO E
Balance at beginning of year FANEEER
Additions NE
Disposals HE
Transfers from property, EREYE -
plant and equipment 5 M
Gain on property revaluation S ER=L
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR
Balance at end of year FRES

China Natural Investment Company Limited FE X AR EBR LT

15.

16.

M BMERRE#)
AEWME - BFERREERBIZATHEX
NEAREASFIE

T RAEF 5%

ERERE 20%

g 20%3K 1 AH

TAEHRBR

(ARSI 8L

HERBE)

MAERME - KA 20% — 40%

NEFEE

bt 25%

REYE

Group
£33
As at As at

30 June 2013

A2013F
6H30H
HK$

BT

30 June 2012
20124
6H30H
HKS

7S TT

183,300,000 149,240,000
6,877,795 16,094,250

- (4,800,000)

- 900,000

- 21,865,750
(190,177,795) -
- 183,300,000




16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:

Land in Hong Kong: REBZ i :
Long-term leases REIMEE
Medium-term leases REATRE

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 30 June
2012 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out at that date by RHL Appraisal Limited ("RHL"), a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to
the Group. RHL employs professional valuers who are members
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and have appropriate
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location
and category of the investment properties being valued. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

The Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, a property previously
included in “property, plant and equipment” was transferred
to investment property due to a change in use as evidenced
by commencement of operating leases to third parties. The
difference at the date of change in use between the carrying
amount of the property and its fair value amounting to
HKS$221,726 was recognised as a revaluation gain in other
comprehensive income.

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

BREWE ()
AR RE AL

Group

rEH
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
720124
6H30H

A20135F
6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT 7S TT

- 97,500,000
- 85,800,000

- 183,300,000

NEEZEYERN201266 A30F A FE
TR EAAREET ERBENBIAERE

EEEMXFTTEBRB AR AR KF
THRZBETHEEETE - XFTTER
CEEGEMATSIEMESKE I
BEEENEEERREHEHEEEDE
2B NMEREEIIHLR - HEDRRK
MSERBEUDEZ XS ERMETE °

AEBYERGOUELHETAFEN
MBS - RARFEREAGE X 08HE
RABRBREYE -

HZE2012F6A308LEFE  ARAIE=
FRGEHEmS AR - Sk
FEATE - WEREE I 2 MEERER
EYE - NERBEEE L ZE  WERA
ERERAFEZHZZ821,7268 TN E
themRE AR AE G -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZE2013F6 A30R IEFE

17. GOODWILL 17. BE

Cost %N
Balance at 1 July 2011, 201148 7H18 ~ 201296 A30H
30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 K2013F6 A30H 2 &8k 33,386,959

Accumulated impairment losses ZiHR{EEE

Balance at 1 July 2011 R201ME7H1B 2 #84 7,125,121
Impairment losses recognised REFHERZBERE
in the year _ 4,000,000
Balance at 30 June 2012 20129F6 H30R 2 &84 11,125,121
Impairment losses recognised REERERBERE
in the year _5200,000
Balance at 30 June 2013 72201356 H30H 2 4 &k 16,325,121
Carrying amounts BREE
Balance at 30 June 2013 2013F6 H30R 2 &tk 17,061,838
Balance at 30 June 2012 201296 H30R 2 &tk 22,261,838
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill was allocated RAEAREME  HEESEZEMERE
to two cash-generating units ("“CGU(s)") representing (i) the EEEM(TReEEEM]) - Bl(sland
Island Kingdom Company Limited and its subsidiaries (‘Island Kingdom Company Limited & £ [ff & R &
Kingdom Group”) which are principally engaged in the ([sland Kingdom& & |+ T 2 & E
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products; and (i) REEERER) RMIVEMNABEBERA
PR ASIA Consultants Limited (‘PR Asia”) which is engaged in BTN B RERELERMGZE
the provision of public relations services. Before recognition % o REERREEER - EXFFm D i
of impairment losses, the carrying amount of the goodwill ZEREELESNUIHEZCREES A A
allocated to the CGUs as detailed above was HK$7,125,121 7,125,121 70 5% 26,261,838 7T °

and HK$26,261,838 respectively.
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17.

GOODWILL (continued)

Island Kingdom Group

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by the management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%. The cash flow
projections are discounted at pre-tax discount rate of 12.44%
per annum which reflect the specific risks relating to this
CcGu.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are
those regarding the discount rate, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecasting period, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The cash flow projections for this CGU was prepared and
projected based on the actual latest financial information of
Island Kingdom Group. As a result of the loss after tax and
continuously increase in cost of its production and operation
especially labour cost, materials cost and rental, these reasons
led to the decrease in the recoverable amount of the CGU
under the value-in-use calculation. During the year ended 30
June 2011, the goodwill arising from the acquisition of the
Island Kingdom Group of HK$7,125,121 was determined by
management to be fully impaired.

PR Asia

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
the management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.5% (2012: 2.5%). The
cash flow projection is discounted at pre-tax discount rate of
16.59% (2012: 14.57%) per annum which reflects the specific
risks relating to this CGU.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those
regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based
on the value-in-use calculations and with reference to an
independent professional valuation. The cash flow projections
for this CGU was prepared and projected based on the actual
latest financial information of PR Asia. As a result of the increase
in overall operating expenses and decrease in profit before tax,
these reasons led to the decrease in the recoverable amount
of the CGU under the value-in-use calculation. As a result, the
Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$5,200,000 (2012:
HK$4,000,000) in respect of the goodwill.

17.

Are R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE20135F6A30H IEFE

[SE1E))

Island Kingdom & &
REEFBM 2N E S EREAEE
B WERBRBEEREEHc AFHMZ
MHEEFERAREREETE - BT
FHERZREREIIN3N LR RIEE
BeRETBR LR AT IR ZEF1244%
ALER - MZANRERM AR e EE B
R

EREETE ZERRRAE BRAERE
ZHARLEERST 2BER  ZEREK
ERERBAGERANEEEHMISER
ZHEMETE °

AESEABMMNR SR ERATIRIE
Island Kingdom® B B B IR & 37 B 15 & KHR
BREE -  ARRTEERE  UAREAE

RISERA » BERE IR - MBI A
EEeMAZER  SB0eELSENZ
AEeERFEREBRE)RD - RE
2201156 H30R EFE - B U Hisland
Kingdom& B FTE 4 2 87,125,121/ 7L A

EREEEREEURE -
TNAE
RAeELEM 2 IRE e EREREE

S WERAREEEESEM 2 AFTEHE
Eﬁﬁf\#n'l'gz%iu"'iﬁﬁﬂmifzi ﬁ_iﬂ
AFEHB 2B ERETIA25% (20124
25%)IBEREE - BE RE TR IR
AT BRIR REF F16.59% (20124F : 14.57%) Bh
B MMBRERMZRECELESMNZETE
J—L|§uu °

EREENE Zﬁﬁiﬁﬁ““i%ﬁ?ﬁi‘ﬁlﬂﬂ,ﬁﬁfﬁ
ZHBARLEERT 2BER  ZFEBX
EEEREAGRALREEBHMGHR
ZHEMETE -

BEANANEEERFEREETEYSE
BYEEMERET ARSELESEMMN
BaRE@BREIN AR B &
HHEERRERGE AR EELEH
TIEMARBRBIaFRD  BEIRGE
EBEf AN E S BE(RFEREETE)
WA e Bt AEEREHERERREEE
5,200,000/ 7T (20124F : 4,000,000/ 7C) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. MEE QAT Z#ER

RIELMBE QAL
BEZA

Cost of investments in
unlisted associates:
- Addition through disposal
of subsidiaries (note 34) (PfFE34)
— Addition through
subscription of
First Right Shares
Share of post-acquisition profits &G U BE 14 3% Kl

On 10 December 2012, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interests in Million Worldwide Group to Town Health
Asset Management Limited (“TH Property Holding"). The
consideration was settled through the issue of 225 new
ordinary shares in TH Property Holding, representing 25% of
the enlarged share capital of TH Property Holding. Immediately
after completion, (i) each member in the Million Worldwide
Group ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and became
subsidiary of TH Property Holding; and (i) TH Property Holding
would in turn owned as to 25% by the Group and became an
associate of the Group. Further details of the disposal are set
out in note 34.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, TH Property
Holding had granted the first right (“First Right”) in favour of
the Group to subscribe for new shares of TH Property Holding
if TH Property Holding proposed to raise fund by issue of new
shares of TH Property Holding within a period of two years
commencing from the completion date of the transactions at
the aggregate consideration of a maximum of HK$100,000,000,
which shall be effected by the giving of a funding notice by
TH Property Holding to the Group.

100 China Natural Investment Company Limited R EI R RIREB R A F

—BBLENBRRIRE

—EBRBEILERDAE

As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012

N20135 R20125

6H30H 6A30H
HK$ HKS
BT BT

216,133,936 -

17,000,000 -
11,880,819 -

245,014,755 -

7201212108 » AN & B M Town Health
Asset Management Limited ([ 5E & ¥ 3 4=
B 1) H & E PMillion Worldwidefs B £
100% M4 - BB BEIT225RER M E
7[R 3 i AR (15 R R W ST AR AR K AR
A 225%) X e BRE ST A& - () Million
Worldwidefs B &K B AR T B AAREE
MEBAR - MKARRYEZERZWERQ
A R)MEEDEZBRERAEEREF
%2R WK EBAEBZEE QT -
HEBBE 2 E—SFIEHAE4 -

RIEEEWE  REVEZEREMAEE
REEEE(TELE]  WERYEER
MR S5 B R T R E ST
EMEERTROEE  MERELRA
100,000,000/ 7C + B ANEE ] EE LR
EREMETROFRGD - HREDEE
RARANEEEDEEBANEERT



18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

On 15 May 2013, the Group received a funding notice from
TH Property Holding indicating its intention to raise fund in
the amount of HK$17,000,000 (“Subscription Consideration”)
by way of issue of 17 ordinary shares (“First Right Shares”) of
HK$1.00 each. On 16 May 2013, the Group issued an exercise
notice to TH Property Holding to notify that it would exercise
the First Right to subscribe for the First Right shares at the
Subscription Consideration stated in the funding notice and
the completion of subscription took place on 16 May 2013.
Immediately following the completion of the subscription, the
Group's shareholding in TH Property Holding was increased to
approximately 26.39%.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had interests in the following
associates:

18.

Principal place

Name of Entity Form of entity Place of incorporation of operation
e iE
ER4R RERA 2% BERY
TH Property Holding Incorporated British Virgin Islands Hong Kong
RENZER a4 ERABRES B
Amazing Success Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong
Limited (note () Ry B (90
Amazing Success
Limited (Fz())
China Universal Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong
Limited (note (i) ML B B
ZEERAAME)
First Billion Investment Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong
Limited (note (1) R &k (305
BlERERRAT
i)
Oriental Elite Limited (note (i)  Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong
FRARAR(ME) a4 Bk B

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

REE QAR ZER (&)

R2013Fs 158 - REBEEREDE
TR EERE  BHEEEEEBRIETY
% = A% EE1.0078 T 2 @ M ([ 8 LR
7 1) By 5 = £ 417,000,000 7T ([ 32 8 K
&) o H20135F5816H - NEE A FE i
PERERERTERS  SHNEBITEE
EENREEBENMHZRERERESE

SeRER Y - MR EIER2013F5816H 5%
X o EREREEIETKIE - NEBNER

VI IR 2 AR RIS DN = 4926.39% ©

R2013F6 H30H » ANEB R T I8 & QA
AR

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued Proportion
Class of capital held by of voting
sharesheld  the Group power held  Principal activities
AREfE
figkts  BRGRE AR
£l HEAAL Bl TEEH
Ordinary 263% 2639%  Investment holding
Lk (Direct) REBR
(B%)
Ordinary 26.39% 2639%  Property investment
Lk (Indirect) VELE
9
Ordinary 26.3%% 263%%  Property investment
Lk (Indirect) VELE
(B)
Ordinary 263%% 263%%  Property investment
Lk (Indirect) nELE
(B%)
Ordinary 26.39% 2639%  Property investment
Lk (Indirect) ES T
(B%)

Annual Report 2013 F i

101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013

EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REELQT 2R #E)
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued Proportion
Principal place Class of  capital held by of voting
Name of Entity Form of entity Place of incorporation of operation sharesheld  the Group power held
AEEfR
affeL iE ikt  ERARE
L1 B % SEny £l AEAA
Perfect Elite Investments Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 26.39% 2639%  Property investment
Limited (note () R & & LR (Indirect) mERE
RERARRAA (W) (B%)
Pherson Limited (note (i) Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 26.39% 2639%  Property investment
Pherson Limited (fiTZE()) a1 A &k Bk Lok (Indirect) nERE
3
Profit Sources Limited (note (i) ~ Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 263% 263%  Property investment
BARARAR(MEG) WAL Bk B LER (Indirect) VEST
(&%)
Talent Vision Limited (note (i)~ Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 263%% 263%%  Property investment
Talent Vision Limited(Ff3E()) AL & & LR (Indirect) mERE
(%)
Wealthy Train Limited (note () ~ Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 26.39% 2639%  Property investment
ZHRRAR(ME) A B (3 L3R (Indirect) nERE
(B%)

Note: PR -

(i) The Group exercise significant influence over this associate 0) AREEAREBEFBEHER2639%ERZ
indirectly through its 26.39% owned TH Property Holding in K@W%T IREEEZEE RETTRE
the year. AE

The above table lists the associates of the group which, in the FRIWEARRFESERATELEFTANE

opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected BEREBERANEEBRBLEEFEIAE

the results of the year or form a substantial portion of the EEE R e RAREERR - FIIEM
net assets of the group. To give details of other associates B ARSI AR BELR

would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR IERENTE

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R IFFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. MEENT 2R (E)
ERAEEBE AR HBEERBES
N

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associates is set out below:

As at
30 June 2013
A20135

6H30H
HKS
BT

Total assets BEEE 1,364,335,471
Total liabilities BEE (429,975,902)
Net assets BEFE 934,359,569

Period from
10 December 2012
to 30 June 2013

B2012%12H10H

Z2013F

6H30H LLHIE

HKS

PSIT

Total revenue B 19,747,793
Total profit for the period B m A 4258 47,190,537
Group's share of profits of associates N5 [ J& (L B & 1 R F) 11,880,819
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZE2013F6 A30R IEFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. FE
Group
REE
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
A2013F 20124
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R 1,160,204 2,427,931
Work in progress T &m 726,756 934,863
Finished goods BIRK [ 3,103,760 3,152,501
4,990,720 6,515,295
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 EFRHMEWKE
Group Company
REE b /N
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135 20126 7A2013%F 20124
6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT 7B TT
Trade receivables 2 5 W FRIE 5,029,881 6,890,681 - -
Receivables arising from BEELMES

dealing in listed securities FrEA 2 FEWSRIE| 3,362,979 839,565 - -
Deposits paid in respect of ERRIErREA

proposed acquisition of BEARAT

Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar ([BEERARDZ

Mining Co., Ltd. B RS (HEE0)

(“Target Company”) (note (i) 32,500,000 23,000,000 - -
Other deposits paid HEme ke 2,289,980 2,873,724 3,000 421,600
Prepayments SEENE ¢ 7,476,851 791,169 126,666 -
Loan receivables (note (ii)) FEUE R (FEEG)) | 21,324,918 | 12,000,000 | 21,221,096 | 12,000,000
Other receivables E b e GRIR 1,198,063 412,833 - 126,054

73,182,672 | 46,807,972 | 21,350,762 | 12,547,654
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i) As of 30 June 2013, refundable deposits of HK$32,500,000
(2012: HK$23,000,000) relating to the proposed acquisition of
the Target Company had been placed with Ms. Chen Yejun
and Mr. Huang Tianhua (collectively, the “Vendors"). Further
details of the proposed acquisition are set out in note 38.

(i) At 30 June 2013, loans to third parties with aggregate principal
and accrued interest amounting to HK$21,324,918 (2012:
HK$12,000,000) are unsecured, bear interest ranging from
10% to 12% (2012: 12%) per annum and repayable within
one year and thus classified as current assets.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, presented

based on the invoice date:

0 - 30 days 0230k

31 - 60 days 31E60K
61 - 90 days 613290k
Over 90 days FRHBO0K

The Group grants a credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days
to its customers. No interest is charged on overdue trade
receivables. The management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade and other receivables and considers the trade
and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
to be of a good credit quality. As at 30 June 2013, 55% (2012:
71%) of the trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in the credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable.

20.

e R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

B 5 K HAib YRR ()
GEX

0] H ZE2013F6A30H - #BWEEZ A A
2 7] 3R B8] #% %32,500,0005 7T (20124F :
23,000,000 7T ) E HREE 2+ RE X
EEE(GBIERDFR - BHKESE
SR E AT FE3S o

(ii) R2013F6A30R  BFE=—FZ2EHRK
& IR B A 21,324,918 78(2012
F £ 12,000,000/ 7T ) B EIEIE - R FF
T10%ZE12% (20124F = 12%) 518 KB
—FREE WHEARBEE -

R A 25 2 B 5 REUOR 2 IR 5 T
mF

Group

rEE
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
A20135F 20124
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
3,027,360 3,936,169
958,421 1,544,481
222,351 460,633
821,749 949,398
5,029,881 6,890,681

AEBEETFHBERZORESAN F30260
Ko BENE ZERFBL TEHE - B
EEZUEEE S REMEURIBE EEE
= UREMEAHITERENE S RE
W RTEE RITMEEE X - R2013F
68308 © 55% (20124F : 71%) & 5 fE WK
EEEAE  NERE BEETHAEE
BRIFMBTEENELRESHFE -

EXBEZESHRRFABRNBE R
ERSHE(EL2HOTREST) - AR

S B35 R AT B 1 3 B R R AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BEZREAMEBWRIEAGE)
Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired 2 38 2R 4B 3 SR (B 2 FE W TR B BR iR
Group
rEE
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
120134 FR20124F
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Up to 90 days ®Z90K 872,752 924,805
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 633,475 517,420
Over 180 days BiB180K 740,617 542,379
2,246,844 1,984,604
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the RETEE 5 EWFIAR AT Y B - KRE
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade BEEZREESEWFIEEEEVGERL A
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the BEREHREELEZMNEMNES - K&
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is MEESTRERER  BAREFPEAWRE
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. KNEE EE -
21. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 21. BEEERE
Held-for-trading investments include: RIEEBERAERRE

Group Company
REH PN
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012
#20134F 20129F  H2013F 720124

6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H

HKS$ HK$ HKS
BT ; BT VBT
Equity securities listed in REE L aI R
Hong Kong, at market value #FH o EmE 13,576,900 | 25,906,100
The fair values of these investments are determined with ZEREZAVFEDZEMBRIMEEA
reference to quoted market bid prices. BEEIE ©
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22.

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R IFFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. RERRSEEY
As at 30 June 2013, the Group's bank balances carry interest 201356 A308 - AEBHRITETEN
at rates ranging from 0.01% to 1% (2012: 0.01% to 0.35%) per F001/E =1[E(20124F : 0018 £035[F ) 2
annum and the Company’s bank balances carry interest at FREFE - MARBNBRITEFENT
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.05% (2012: 0.01%) per annum. 001/E Z=005/E (20124F : 0018 ) 2 FFIEE
The Group's cash and cash equivalents represent deposits B o AEBERRSRESEEWEUERR
of HK$50,000,000 (2012: nil) placed with a securities broker = FLER P 17 IR 75 5 48 42 2 17 550,000,000
in its client trust account and bank balances and cash of BILQONRFE: MIRBRTHEFRR S
HK$70,983,545 (2012: HK$32,846,867) and the Company’s cash 70,983,545/ JT(20124F : 32,846,867/ JT )
and cash equivalents represent bank balances and cash of MARFINIEE KR EEBWMIBRITET X
HK$485,510 (2012: HK$16,271,973). 548551078 7T (20124 1 16,271,97387T) °
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EBEFZREMENTRE
Group Company
rEE PN
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 2013 2012
R2013% R2012%  R2013%F 20124
6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT PSTT B IT PSTT
Trade payables B G e R 2,124,695 4,385,135 - -
Other payables and accruals R AN
K fEst & R 4,002,831 3359,115 | 1,690,170 182,753
Rental deposits received Bl E%E - 1,210,754 - -
6,127,526 8,955,004 1,690,170 182,753

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

the invoice date:

0 - 30 days 0&30K

31 - 60 days 31260K
61 - 90 days 61290K
Over 90 days FBHRO0K

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is
30 days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit

timeframe.

HERRAZIN2EZHRNFIAZ KK DT
LU

Group

rEH
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
120134 F20124F
6A30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
AT BT
1,289,141 2,789,016
393,093 489,700
17,455 638,424
425,006 467,995
2,124,695 4,385,135

oD H+ (1= O
mE Hon

%1 1 7 B 55 R B i PR RO

HIR AT A FE S 5008 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24, EEBEAR
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised NTARAFEMBTFEERANEER
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: AR ENRHEE)

Convertible

Accelerated

tax depreciation notes
IEFHIERNE AR B
HKS HKS
PSTT BIT
Group EE
Balance at 1 July 2011 201145 7H18
ZEEER 675,221 - 675,221
Charge to profit or loss B Em Rk 488,592 - 488,592
Eliminate on disposal s — RS
of a subsidiary NSS! (5,067) - (5,067)
Balance at 30 June 2012 201256 A30H
2 AEER 1,158,746 - 1,158,746
Recognised upon issue AT AR
of convertible notes TR - 7,954,284 7,954,284
Credit to profit or loss FFABEER (13,567) (706,192) (719,759)
Credit to reserve T ARG - (7,248,092) (7,248,092)
Eliminate on disposal o & B 2B
of subsidiaries NI SFis (1,112,039) - (1,112,039)
Balance at 30 June 2013 7201396 A30H
2 KEER 33,140 - 33,140

Company

Balance at 1 July 2011 and 30 June 2012

Recognised upon issue of

AT

TR IR FERR

Convertible
notes

RRRE

HKS
BT

MA20114E7 A1 8 %20125E6 A308 2 &6 -

convertible notes 7,954,284
Credit to profit or loss FFAEREER (706,192)
Credit to reserve ST A (7,248,092)

Balance at 30 June 2013 M2013F6 A30H 2 &84 -
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24,

25.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$ 104,639,000 (2012: HK$51,721,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 3 December 2012, the Company issued an aggregate
principal amount of HK$100,000,000 unsecured convertible
notes due 2015.

The convertible notes are interest-free and will mature on
2 December 2015. The holder of the convertible notes has
the right to convert whole or part of its convertible notes
into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.05 per share any time commencing from the issue
date up to the business day immediately prior to the maturity
date.

Unless previously redeemed, converted or repaid in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the convertible notes, the
Company will redeem all convertible notes at their principal
amount on the maturity date. The Company may early redeem
any portion of the outstanding convertible notes at par at any
time prior to the maturity date.

The convertible notes contain two components, liability
(together with embedded derivative for early redemption right
by the Company which is closely related to the host debt) and
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity
under the heading of “convertible notes reserve”. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of the convertible notes
is 24.52% at the date of initial recognition.

On 18 March 2013, convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$40,000,000 were converted into shares of HK$0.05 each
in Company at the conversion price of HK$0.05 per share.
Accordingly, a total of 800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each were issued.

On 2 May 2013, convertible notes with principal amount of
HK$60,000,000 were converted into shares of HK$0.05 each
in Company at the conversion price of HK$0.05 per share.
Accordingly, a total of 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each were issued.

24,

25.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE201356A308 IEFE

EEHREEE %)

RIFERR AEBEXRBHARBEBELN A
104,639,000 70 (20124 : 51,721,000/ 7T )
ATAREIEARIRA - ZEMBAREDAH
THBE T IR A o RPN EIATRRAIR 2R
EAAOR - AN B s R IR B IR R
IREFRTAEEE ©

AREE

R2012F12A38 » A RRET AL B
100,000,0005 7T 720154 5| H 49 4 $5 3 7]
BRI -

AR ER A% B W R2015F12828 5
Ho AR EBEAEAGERETREE
SZREFHEATNEED LHIR - BERRER
& B & A%0.058 T AS E 2 EP k&0 AT AR =
b YNNG Sl e

B IE St A 2 AR 1B AT R B R AR A0 IR R B AR 1
B BB EE  SRIARAEREIE
AR AeREL A ERE - AAF
AR B HA B ATRE B IR E(E IR P A ] 15 R AT
AR IR A ER D o

AR B EMES S - BaEGER E
FEEHPBEEEENAQFIETEDE
FOMARTETR) RIERID - D
HoR iR EEH#EE B THERZAZE
A o AR EIEBEI D RV B 5
R EBRFE 524.52% ©

20133180 * 7N & %8 540,000,000/
TCRY A AR IR R AR B A% 0.05/8 L& 8
BAEKRQRSREEOSE TG -
It B 2174 $£800,000,0000% & I E{E0.05
BITHEER -

M2013F5H28 + 7K€ B8 560,000,000 JT
R AR RIRIE R RE S RR00SE T EE
AR B E R EE0.058 TR AR5 °
It - B 3174 $£1,200,000,0000% & f% E &
0.05/8 JCH) L A% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 25. AHBERRE#E)
The movement of liability component of the convertible notes AMRREERES e
is as follows:
HKS
BIT
At the date of issue, net of issue expense  REITHE » MFREITHX 51,792,217
Interest charge (note 8) FEFRZ(H5Es) 4,279,952
Conversion during the year REE R (56,072,169)

Carrying amount of liability component 2013566 H30H

as at 30 June 2013 BEMNHEREE -
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BA
Number of shares Share capital
RHEE €S
HKS
BT
Authorised EE
As at 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 7201147818 ~ 201296 A308
and 30 June 2013, ordinary shares K2013%6H308 -
of HK$0.05 each GRMEE0SA T 2 B 10,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
As at 1 July 2011, ordinary shares 20114718 -
of HK$0.05 each GREBESHE T Bk 1,108,334,892 55,416,745
Issue of 554,167,446 new shares of R2012F4 BB AREE
HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.07 ZRREB G EMRIRE
per offer share on the basis of one RN —IRBERD 2 L
offer share for every two existing INEAREE 50078 7T
shares held on the record date Z(BI&EE1T7554,167 446 %
by way of open offer in April 2012 FRLEE0.0578 T 2 FT A (D 554,167,446 27,708,372
As at 30 June 2012, ordinary shares 201296 A308 -
of HK$0.05 each BRMEESAE T 2 B 1,662,502,338 83,125,117
Issue of 1,000,000,000 new shares of 12012 11 AEBECE L &K
HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.05 AR % 190.058 7T 2 (B 1%
each per placing share by way of #£171,000,000,0008%
placing in November 2012 BREESE T FRG, 1,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issue of 800,000,000 new shares of F2013F3 A H R AR R Z IR 1%
HK$0.05 each upon conversion #£17800,000,0008%
of convertible notes in March 2013 GREE005E T2 RGN 800,000,000 40,000,000
Issue of 1,200,000,000 new shares of 201355 ATE AR R R 1%
HK$0.05 each upon conversion #£471,200,000,0008%
of convertible notes in May 2013 BREE.05B T2 FTk D 1,200,000,000 60,000,000
As at 30 June 2013, ordinary shares 20136 A308 -
of HK$0.05 each BRMEESAE T T B 4,662,502,338 233,125,117
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26.
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 27.

Unlisted investments, at cost JELETIRE @ LA

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries as shown on the Company’s
statement of financial position are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

e PR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

[ &NE P
FRARRZMBLARMERE  HE
RS Bl AR R AL -

RNBEARZRE

Company
PN

As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
M2013F FR20124F
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT PETT

788

KRB EBHBRAR 2 BRI BEIRE
MEE37 ©

Bl (FEf) B A T RRIE
RAB ISR RITR 2 U (FEAH) M
BRARFIEREEN 2 ERAKRENRE
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
EHZ=2013F6 A30A LEFE

28.
(a)

RESERVES

Group and Company

Share options reserve

The share options reserve relates to share options
granted to certain directors, employees, other eligible
participants and The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Further information about share-based payments is set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve represents cumulative
gains and loss arising from the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment that have been transferred to
investment properties. ltems included in the property
revaluation reserve will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of
the net assets of the Group's foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group's presentation
currency (i.e. HK dollars) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the foreign currency
translations reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the foreign operations.

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component (conversion rights) of the HK$100 million
zero coupon convertible notes issued during the year
(see note 25). Items included in the convertible notes
reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss.
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28.

3]
(a)

FEEREATF

BRERE
%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%“?%% =
B HtEERSEERFEFX

REBH B - UMD RBEREZN
R — T ERE R RR M
31

WEE#E
MEELFREEGRCERERE
MENYE - BE RREAELN
REt I LEE - FEAMEERF
EHEBERTEER D EE RS
A o

SERE R
BRAKEBINEH 2 EEFEHR
HIgt B R AEE 258
BB ELZERZE  Bi
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HRREZHE
AIRRERFEEEFRNEETH
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28.

29.

RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company

Balance at 1 July 2011

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of new shares by way
of open offer

Share issue expenses

Balance at 30 June 2012

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Share ssue expenses

Lapse of share options granted
under Right of First
Refusal Agreement

Recognition of the equity
component of convertible notes

Deferred tax liability on
recognition of equity
component of convertible notes

Conversion of convertible
notes to ordinary shares

Release of deferred tax liability
upon conversion
of convertible notes

Balance at 30 June 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

e mARMTE

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

RONETAIR 6%
TEREEER
2HBRY
FRLFEE
BTk
RhETER

ROIECANAZER
TEREER
2HBRY
e
REETEERDE
Rt ERERN

2B

RERR
HATBRREE
REEL

0136 A308 2 &8

Share
premium

kv
HKS

iy

28. f#fE#)

(b)

Share options
reserve

ARQH
Convertible
notes
reserve
ik
FERG
HKS

Accumulated
losses

ZitEBR
HKS

296,335,047 837,295 - (64822003) 232350339
- - - (4880902) (4:880902)

11,083,349 - - - 11,083,349
(1659118) - - - (1659118)
305,759,278 837,295 - (69,702,905) 236,893,668
- - - (9,712,069) (9,712,069)
(1,928,690) - - - (1,928,690)

- (837,295) - 837,295 -

- - 44,581,533 - 44,581,533

- - (7,954,284) - (7,954,284)

(52,490) - (43,875,341) - (43,927,831)

- - 7,248,092 - 7,248,092
303,778,098 - - (78,577,679) 225,200,419

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$9,712,069 (2012: HK$4,880,902).

29. ARATHEEAELEE

RREER ABEEEBRAR R EHRE
MERIE » LA9,712,0697 7T (20124F 14,880,902
BIT) BIR .
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A30B IEFE

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$497,013
(2012: HK$900,009) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans.

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share option scheme
A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company on 20 April 2004 for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
may, at its discretion, invite any employees, directors,
advisors, consultants, licensors, distributors, suppliers,
agents, customers, joint venture partners, strategic
partners and services providers of and/or to any
member of the Group whom the Board considers in its
sole discretion, to have contributed to the Group from
time to time (together “Participants”) to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”).

Options granted should be accepted within 14 days
from the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options,
the eligible person shall pay HKS$1 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the option period
after the Options has been granted by the Board. An
option period is a period to be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion and notified by the
Board to each eligible person as being the period
during which any Options may be exercised, such
period to expire not later than 10 years after the date
of grant of the Options.

114 China Natural Investment Company Limited FEI X RIREBIR A H

30.

31.

R FEHE
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (continued)

The subscription price will be determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion and shall be no less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted or to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
listing date of the Company on GEM (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit").

The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate
Limit at any time subject to prior shareholders of the
Company's approval. No Participants shall be granted
an option which, if exercised in full, would result in
such Participants becoming entitled to subscribe for
such number of shares as, when aggregated with the
total number of shares already issued under all the
options previously granted to him or her which have
been exercised, and, issuable under all the outstanding
options previously granted to him or her which are
for the time being subsisting and unexercised, would
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant of the
Options. Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HE201356A308 IEFE

31. UROARER ZNRRZ @)

(a)

BRAESH ()
REENHETS2ENBETE
TEABLIRTI=FFHNES
FQREER(WEARERA)E
KBNS B RERAEH RN
Wi {8 RO)EFFH A A E
BEBBMIAELNE B RERM
RO FHKRHE - ROBDE
-

RIEBRESIE RSB IRTE
M AT A B AR A JE 1T B T /] A
BITHRG BB AR R RN B ER
L EBMEETRARI0% ([5
EIFIERREE ) ©

INES AR R A TESCHLAE - A
GG SRR AL e R
o BEERTEBREZ B IENER
+ =@ A M - kR mE SN
EHE N ERERBESITE M EEZ
HLHREFRAENZERMEE
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For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A30B IEFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme (continued)

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms
therein, the Share Option Scheme will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 18 June 2004.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at the shareholders’ meeting.

There was no movement of share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme during the years
ended 30 June 2012 and 2013

Right of First Refusal Agreement with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong

Pursuant to an agreement dated 8 August 2002 entered
into between The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Company relating to the grant of a right of
first refusal to the Company by The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in respect of certain technology and
inventions, as amended and supplemented by
agreements dated 31 October 2003 and 16 April 2004
(the “Right of First Refusal Agreement”), the Company
will be offered a right of first refusal for the grant by The
Chinese University of Hong Kong of a royalty-bearing
exclusive licence to use and commercially develop
certain technologies and inventions and other non-
invasive diagnostic technologies for detecting cancer
and foetal diseases developed by Professor Lo Yuk
Ming, Dennis in future.

In return, the Company agreed to grant to The Chinese
University of Hong Kong or such person as The Chinese
University of Hong Kong may direct (including trustees
of any funds) options to subscribe for shares or to pay
cash up to a maximum amount of HK$4,600,000 over
the period of the term of such agreement of four years
commencing from 18 June 2004. Such grant of options
will be granted to The Chinese University of Hong Kong
at intervals of twelve months. Such options are not
intended to be granted under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2004.
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31.

URGRER ZNRR S (4)

(a)

(b)

BRETEI(E)

BrIERAR AT IR R E R R AR
1F - BRI EIR20045F6H18
Azt 0F B a K -

BEEITETHEAZAREX
NI E N e YU

B 20124 R 20136 A30R IEEE
SRR AR BI9E 1 DAL M
@J o
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IRIEE B H KB B KA F] 522002
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

(b)

Right of First Refusal Agreement with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (continued)

The following table discloses the details of share
options granted pursuant to the Right of First Refusal
Agreement during the years ended 30 June 2012 and
2013:

Exercise
Date of grant Exercise period price per share

B¥R4 TREHH BRITEE
HKS

27 June 2008 (note) 27 December 2008 to 4.966
26 June 2013
2008F6A278 (HFE)  2008%F12A278F
2013F6A26H
Note:

The exercise price and outstanding number of options as
at 1 July 2011 were retrospectively adjusted for the share
consolidation which became effective on 6 August 2009, the
share consolidation which became effective on 21 January
2010 and adjusted for the open offer which became effective
on 18 April 2012.

31.

AR SRR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

URGBRER ZNRRZ (@)

(b) HEFBHRIXARENELBEEGS
(%)
TRBEEZE20129F %20135F6 A30
HIEFFERBEELESE#BZEED
2 B RERES

Outstanding
asat Lapsed during Outstanding
1July2011and the year ended asat
30June2012  30June2013  30June 2013
R20ME7A1E EE2013F 142013%F
R2012F 6A30H 6A308
6A30BERITH  LFEXX e RATHE

261,778 (261,778) -

G

R20NME7RIBRTHEREZTHEE
RARITEEREE B B 35 Bl 20094F
8H6H &2010F1 A21HREAEBENDE
BHEL BT - WHtK2012F4818H
AR AFRABEEELAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MBS HRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

32.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (which
includes trade and other payables net of cash and cash
equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of the Company
(comprising issued share capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2013 and 2012 were as
follows:

Debts (note (i)

Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Equity (note (ii))

& (&)
ReLREEEY

s (MIEEG))

B

Gearing ratio EEBBHLE
Notes:
(i) Debt comprised trade and other payables.
(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company.
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32.

EXEmERE
AEBEEREBENEHET ARSI E
gE - AR LEFRRAR A
RRRAER KB o AN BB R A
FEBEFE 2 -

AEEBZEABEBERSFRE(ES MEM
ENFENGRRE RBEFEY) AR
AHEAANEGERZ(EREEITRA R
)

AEBENZESEBE O E AR EM
BR ©

EERMEEER
ARBEZTEHEHNEARE - (FREH
2B BREEREAKRARERER
HERER - REBEFRZ  ARESERB
SRR BITHBRARBITHEBCH
ERENGEBERTE -

F2013F K 2012F6 A30H B E B & L R i
T

Group

rEE
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
A20135F 20124
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
6,127,526 8,955,004
(120,983,545) (32,846,867)
(114,856,019) (23,891,863)
472,610,562 313,137,770
N/A N/A

EBBEE S R EMENRIEA -

REBEMBARNREAARIEERR

e



33.
33.1

33.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

B R

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and
cash equivalents)
Fair value through profit
or loss (held-for-trading
investments)

TRAE

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management has been monitoring
these risk exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner so
as to mitigate or reduce such risks.

There has been no change to the types of the Group's
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(a) Foreign currency risk management

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency riskas most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

(BREEZNESEED)

RERRRATEAR
(FEEERE)

e PR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

33. £@TIA
33.1 £@MITEMNER
Group
REE
As at As at
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
20135 20125
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
186,689,366 78,863,670
13,576,900 25,906,100
6,127,526 8,955,004
33.2 HIXEREEAEERBER

REBZEBEAAZZ BT KR
@ miGRR(BEINERR - FIX
R Nk ERER)  EERR R
nBETRRE - EEEAEERZ
FRRR - ARELR AR M B A RO ERER
HE 2 URRZERR -

AEERSBIANEY AR 2 E
ARRERREERRN LS
#H -

(a) SMEREBREE

A & B AR D AR B SN B R
@ TR KEHEE
R BERAGBHAET
FHE - REBEBRKRAINESH
HHER - A BEEEEE
EONEHMAEYE - WRFE
R E B RERINEAEIEL
i o
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

HZE2013F6A308 LLFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
33.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
(b) Interest rate risk management

(c)

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the time deposit. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to the loan receivables and
bank balances. The Group currently does not
have a formal interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging the
interest rate risk should the need arise. The
fair value interest rate risk on bank deposits
is insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-
term.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
throughitsinvestmentin listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period
if equity prices had been 10% higher/lower
(2012: 10% higher/lower) with all other
variables held constant, the consolidated profit
after tax for the year would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$1,358,000 (2012: loss after
tax decrease/increase by HK$2,591,000) mainly
due to the changes in fair value of held-for-
trading investments.
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33.

SRTI A

33.2

MERREEREERBE(E)

(b) FIEEBREE

R EE B W E B 77 5K R
FEMEERR AEEH
W &R R IR TT A 17 TR E
BReRENKER - KAE
EIEN S = W 2
- R BEEEBEEE
MEER YREFERE
BRI E R EH - /A
REBERRELY - 8IRTT
FRRE R FEN BRI A

BEX-

(c)  EBftEKERE

AEBETZEEE FHARA
BHLEMAZRABER
B o BB LA R E R K [
BEEZREAGEENMSE

I o

AT 8RR IE 5 AT THAR B R
o HA IR A RS AN (B 45 [ B A
METE - fHE RAERKIL M
B 10% (20124 : 3840,
A 10%) - M H At H R A
T8 RNEFLZRERERF
#5386 00,58 > 491,358,000
TL(2012%F « BigEsiER L,
H#12,591,00087C) © FEH

REBEEERERFE
PER



33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
33.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(d)

Credit risk management

As at 30 June 2013, The Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt and debt investment at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or with good reputation.

Otherthan concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings or good reputation,
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

[N =y FIX R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A308 LF/E

LRI E %)
33.2 BIREREEEEREE(E)

(d) 1EEEREE

R2013F6 A0 A X5
HFRERBTEE(EAEH
BBt e B E) mE A S
EESZUBEBRNANEER
=eEERE - EEXBERE
AUBRRERIIN ST
REBMEENREE -

AREEERR  AKEE
BEECRR/NAAERER
BF - ARRERRERER
He 45 (] 280 B 1| IR o it b
A& E R E R E
BB ZESREBRENT
Yol 2hEE - AREIRTERBE

[E] #) BURR HE 722 4 60 Rk (A
Bepltms EERR
AEENEERRE KIE

RBASNIEERRAR
B3 B F A RER LR
RIS T BB E RN
BER TR -

BREEBEPREREZHRA
BEEFREBERIF 2R
TZREBERI - NEEE
BFHMEERRREETH

FEIEERZ B KA MIE
EIZ%

ARE BB A T M
s EL M5 B 08 3 A AR IR
HemEERBEERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

ST HE%E)
33.2 EBIREREEEEREE(E)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

33.2

33.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
(e) Liquidity risk management (e)
In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current

MmEEZEEEE
SERRBESARME
AEBZHE/ERERR

and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

Liquidity tables

ERFERZRBESTE
VAR (R B 4 15 2 PAFE 15172 2R
LAEHRDHESHTEZRE
& -

TREFFAIB AL EIENTE
TRHEBENKRTARIEE
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have Moo BERBBASEE BN
NEFEHNEREaEPR

BRBASRERE -

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-

o

been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

Group
rEE
On demand Total Total
or within undiscounted carrying
one year cash flows amount
RERY, ARBRRE
R—FR REAHE REEARE
HKS HKS HKS
T BT T
At 30 June 2013 1201356 A30H
Non-derivative kTESREE

financial liabilities

Trade and other payables & 5 Kk H A fEf ZK1E 6,127,526 6,127,526 6,127,526
At 30 June 2012 7201256308
Non-derivative kTESREE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 & HAth fE~ A 8,955,004 8,955,004 8,055,004
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
33.3 Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows.

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively.

The fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing
models for optional derivatives.

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding those described
above) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

Management considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, are grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

[N =y FIX R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A308 LF/E

SRITAE®)

333 S@MIEAQAFE
SRHEERSREBEZATAENIZ
THIFIEETE ©

BB BREGRR G RRE
BRBMSEENEREE
ke®ad Dol Em
BT ERERRSERE

EATHE -

TETAZ R FETIARE
AHE e ARG ARERS -
AIZEEIREOTAET AT AS
Hi 2 i PR W s rh ARG TTRE IR
BERAN - MEBEITET
HAIASEE ERAETTRE
BIRBRAM -

HtvemEERERAE
(FEELX) 2 A FE
TIRBEMRBESRENITIEZ
EEFRMEBRAET -

EEERRNEZE P BEHRER P HER
ZEREEREMAENRAEER
HAFERSE -

REEHMBERLEERZ A FE
T8

RIFHERRE - TR TAARFE
AE - UYRAFEAEERESR

F—E=4:

- RAFENEDADH
BIATE = 8 (835 B 45
FrIRSRIE (R AR B -

F_RRNTFEFETIRE —
MEFAZRES BEES
BEAEREMER)HMEE
(BB BRITE)BREA
BEEH Rk
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e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. ®RITA®E
33.3 Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 333 S@MIBELQFEE)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated RESHBERLEBRZ A FE
statement of financial position (continued) T2 (&)
Level 3 fair value measurements are those . F=JRFEFTETIET AN
derived from valuation techniques that include FERIB AR T 5 EUR (/&
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based FEERGARE) cEEL
on observable market data (unobservable BEZMBETESL -
inputs).
Group
rEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F— B E=4
HKS HKS
BT BT
At 30 June 2013 201356 H30H
Financial assets SREE
Held-for-trading HIEBEERE
investments 13,576,900 - - 13,576,900
At 30 June 2012 201266 H30H
Financial assets SREE
Held-for-trading HEEERE
investments 25,906,100 - - 25,906,100
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in PRREFEAN  E—REF_F 2
both years. N A o
34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 34, HENEARF

HZE2013F6A30H L EE
R2012F7A318 AEBEEERER
BEREERAR([HERE]) 223K

Year ended 30 June 2013
On 31 July 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in Core Medical Technology Limited (“Core Medical”) at a cash

consideration of HK$360,000.

On 10 December 2012, the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interests in Million Worldwide Group to TH Property Holding.
The consideration was settled through the issue of 225 new
ordinary shares in TH Property Holding, representing 25% of
the enlarged share capital of TH Property Holding, for which
was determined with reference to the fair value of assets and
liabilities of Million Worldwide Group.

124 China Natural Investment Company Limited Bl R AR EHR L 7

# - L MR(E A360,0008 7T °

M2012F128108  REBE R FEEYET
A% & E P Million Worldwide 2= B #1009% %
W o RIBIBE BTSRRI
RS (B 4 AR S I KR AR 2 25% )
S T2 Z Million WorldwideSEE 2
BENMBEZATFEETE -



34.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.

e PR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

HENRB AT (&)
HZ20135F6 H30B L FE(£E)

Million
Worldwide
Group
Core Million
Medical Worldwide
BEE 5
HK$ HKS$
BT B IT
Consideration received: EHARME -
- Cash -He 360,000 - 360,000
- 25% equity interests in — ERIEYZEIERR25%
TH Property Holding Coliier - 216,133,936 216,133,936
360,000 216,133,936 216,493,936
Analysis of asset and liabilities EARAIESIRE
over which control was lost: BERBEIN
Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 - B MR - 347,625 347,625
Investment properties "B - 190,177,795 190,177,795
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H MW RIE 355,291 84,329 439,620
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBSEEY 3,625 5,843,963 5,847,588
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERFRIE - (1,452,580) (1,452,580)
Current tax liabilities EHRERE - (261,418)  (261,418)
Deferred tax liabilities RAETIREE - (1,112,039) (1,112,039)
Net assets disposed of FrE2 FEE 358,916 193,627,675 193,986,591
Gain on disposal & Es 1,084 22,506,261 22,507,345
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising  HHEE£ZIREHRACGRHE)
on disposal: FEE
Cash consideration received BYERERE 360,000 - 360,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents  J& : FTHHE 2
disposed of Re MASEEY (3,625) (5,843,963) (5,847,588)
356,375 (5,843,963) (5,487,588)

H & Million Worldwides Bz B 5T AKRSE
EREBERIEEEERZBEERIFE) ©

The gain on disposal of Million Worldwide Group is included in
the loss for the year from discontinued operation (note 10).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34.
Year ended 30 June 2012
On 24 April 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Fairy Global Investment Limited and its subsidiary
(collectively, the "FGIL Group”) at a cash consideration of
HK$22,500,000.

On 18 January 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Hong Kong Health Management Limited ("HKHM")
for a cash consideration of HKS$2.

On 30 December 2011, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in V-Express Pharmaceutical Limited ("VEPL") for a cash
consideration of HK$600,000.

HEMB AR (&)
BiZ2012F6H30HILFE
R2012F4H248 - AEBE LR &K E
22,500,000/ T EHWNMEH IR EBRAF]
MEKWBAR(GBIEHEEER 22
N e

R2012F1H18H » AEEUIR & KRELE
THEERBERETEARAR(EHE
BREE ) 2 2 AL -

R2011F12A308 ) REBEMNIB & K E
600,000/ T EH R EREBEEFR A A
([BeprE s |) 2 2 PR AR -

The FGIL Group HKHM
BHEE BARE
&F =g
HKS HKS
BT BT
Total cash consideration received BREURERELTE 22,500,000 2 600,000 23,100,002
Analysis of asset and liabilities BREEIECEE
over which control was lost: RBED
Property, plant and equipment WE - BER®R 512,699 - - 512,699
Inventories FE - - 65,482 65,482
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E b e W FUIE 416,317 - 569,973 986,290
Cash an d cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 20,958,967 - 94,693 21,053,660
Trade and other payables 25 NEMENTE (61972) - (178,891) (240,863)
Deferred tax liabilities ERERBEE - (5,067) - (5,067)
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of ~ FTHHEZFEE/(BfF) 21826011 (5,067) 551,257 22,372,201
Gain on disposal & W 673,989 5,069 48743 727,801
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: ~ HEE£ZHESMAFE :
Cash consideration received BUCRERE 22,500,000 2 600,000 23,100,002
Less: cash and cash equivalents W THE Y
disposed of RekBEEEY (20,958,967) - (94,693) (21,053,660)
1,541,033 2 505,307 2,046,342
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group has commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FA
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ £ - ZFHF
(PREEEMTF)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases were negotiated and
rentals were fixed over two to three years. The Group does
not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry
of the lease period.

The Group as lessor

Property rentalincome earned during the yearwas HK$2,520,283
(2012: HK$5,993,129). All of the Group's investment properties
are held for rental purposes. They are expected to generate
rental yields of 4% on an ongoing basis.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6 H30R (FFE

KeEHERE
ZKEKW%EQHA

R AEBIRBENATREAEE
f %ﬁATﬁIJi‘Jﬁﬁ AY Rk R&ERS
SRIBAEENT -

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZE20135F HZ20126F
6A30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE

HK$ HKS

BT BIT
850,206 3,950,787
450,000 625,205
1,300,206 4,575,992

REBVFTEDEAEERERIEYE
ENzZEE HOMARE2HERME
—FZFHER - AREYERERER
REEHEEEZRER -

AEEESBBEA
FRETHELZ MERE 2 WA 52,520,283
TE(20124F © 5,993,129/ 7T ) » AN &£ E 7 fT
EREMELHERER % - BHRED
S ERE S RS EERE o

RIBEHR - ARECEBPFTA - KR
RIEHEESKALT ¢
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e B mRMTE

For the year ended 30 June 2013
EZ=2013F6 A30R IEFE

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 35. REHEEREL)

The Group as lessor (continued) AEBERHBEAE)
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
BZ2013F BZE20124
6A30H 6H30H
LEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT o
Within one year —FA - 3,839,026
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EERF
(BREERMF) - 1,296,068
- 5,135,094
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALRS
Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated RERAGEEMBRERAMMERERES
financial statements, the Group entered into the following Hh - REBEGIREE 28T HE W E K
significant related party transaction based on the terms TET NI EREEATRS :

mutually agreed between the parties involved:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2013 2012

HZ2013F B ZE20124F

6H30H 6H30H

LFE IEFE

HKS$ HKS

BT BIT

Rentals paid/payable to BN —REAL
a related party ZHe 146,390
Rental fee for the use and lease of office premise of the Group HAAEBERAZEZ2HSEN BN TA
was paid/payable to a related party who is a family member KRB EERREREREB AKKKE
of the ultimate beneficial owner of the substantial shareholder ZEEALT c BIBBIER EMBA - H
of the Company. The transaction constituted continuing BRSERERS -

connected transaction as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I ERER M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2013

HZE2013F6 H30R IFFE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BAEALIRFZ (&)
The remuneration of the directors (who are the key management FR BF(AEEXTEBTEAE) ZH M
personnel of the Group) during the year were as follows: s

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2013 2012
HZ2013F B E20124F
6A30H 6H30H
LEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Compensation of key FTEEBABZFM
management personnel
Short-term benefits 72 BRI 2,258,498 1,674,569
Post-employment benefits RIKRET 40,750 37,883
2,299,248 1,712,452
37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. XEMBEATAE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June M2013F6H308 - ARAlEEMNBAAE
2013 are set out as follows: BT :

Proportion
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operations and legal form paid up share capital held by the Company  Principal activities
e/ NG
WEARZHE EXHEARERER BRTRARRE BREREANL  IERH
Chemosino International Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share USS1 100%  Investment holding
Chemosino International Limited limited liability company Lk (Diect)  REER
ZERERES ARAMLT B3 (B%)
Fairy Empire Investment Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares US$100 100%  Investment holding
BEREERAT limited liability company LER (Direct)  HEER
ABGARES  BRELAA 1007 (B%)
Healthy International Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100%  Trading of health products and
BRERARAT & BRERAT LERI0000ET (Indirect) investment holding

(B®) REREARRARK

Hong Kong Genius Obstetrics Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary share HKS1 100%  Provision of consultancy services
Service Consultancy & BREALA Lk (ndiect)  REEHRS
Company Limited BT (%)

BRI REERARAT
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BHZE2013F6 308 IFFE
37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. FENEBLATE)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Place of incorporation/
operations and legal form
e/
EXBURLREA

Issued and fully
paid up share capital

BRTRAEREK

Proportion
ownership interest
held by the Company
N
EEERGADL

Principal activities

TERH

Hong Kong Hepatitis Diagnostic Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary shares HK$100 100%  Provision of diagnostic testing services
Centre Limited £k BREALT Lk (Indirect) relating to certain liver diseases

BARADMRLERAT 100%7 (B%) REETRRZDENERE
Next Dimension Advertising Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary shares HK$100 100%  Provision of advertising and
SERESARLA Bk BREALT LER 1005 (Indirect) public relations services

(B%) REBESROBRG
PR ASIA Consultants Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary shares HKS100 100%  Provision of public relations services
ENAERRAR BE AREMAA EERI00ET (ndrect) ~ REDERHK

(#%)
Golden Brand Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary shares HKS10 100%  Investment holding
HERARRAA BE AREMAT EEMRI0ET (ndrect) ~ RERR

(%)
Vida Laboratories Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary shares HK9620,000 100%  Manufacturing, trading and packaging
EEEFHERAT Bk BREALT LR 6200008 T (Indirect) in pharmaceutical products

(%) ZafE 25REX
Huge Discovery Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share USS1 100%  Investment holding
Huge Discovery Limited Bk BREMLA LEkiET (ndiec) — RERR

(#%)

FRIHEZRRIBFEAREEES
BEZARRTENBLAR -EFERR
AIEMHE ARSI AT BELE -

The above table lists out the principal subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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38.

39.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Acquisition of Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining Co.,
Ltd.

On 15 May 2012, the Company announced that Huge
Discovery Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) (the “Purchaser”) and the vendors entered into
an acquisition agreement dated 7 May 2012 (as amended
pursuant to deeds of variation dated 13 September 2012, 30
October 2012, 31 December 2012, 30 April 2013 and 7 May
2013), pursuant to which, among other things, the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and the vendors have
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire equity interest in the
Target Company and related shareholder loan, at a cash
consideration of HK$148,000,000 (subject to adjustments).
The aforesaid acquisition constituted a major transaction on
the part of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules, and
completion took place on 31 July 2013.

Following completion, the Target Company will become an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the
financial result and position of the Target Company and its
subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Target Group”) will
be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, the management of the Group is still in the midst
of determining the financial effect of the acquisition.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the discontinued operation as set out in note 10,
certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to current year's presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in the
current year.

38.

39.

IR2N =y FIX R

For the year ended 30 June 2013
HZE2013F6A308 LF/E

BEMRER
BEPRERBEREERAF

2012654158 - AR 2 A E fiHuge
Discovery Limited (AR R 2 BE2EHEB
~a) ([EFHEEFR201295A8785]2
s B 175 5 (AR I8 H #3 B201249F9 3138 -
20124 10H30H ~ 2012412318 ~ 2013
F4A308 %2013F5A7A ME R ZEE
M) El - (BEReE)EREERERE
BE MEACBRHEREHEEEAR
ZEBREREBBREER  BeREA
148,000,000/ 7o (A] T %)  IRIFAIZER
EWARA . P EEERNART 2 —
HBEAKXS » BR2013FE7A31HE K °

R - BIRARBKASARNAE 2 M
2EMBAR MERATRENERR
(Rl BREE ) 2 M5 R E LR BN
AEB 2R P BMREE AR - RAR
BHmAERY  AEEEEENEETE
WEESETRZ MR -

=

HBHF
RARMEI0BIME R LEEER - 5T
HBEBFEELAE  NERFEES—
BERAFEBERKEZEB RELRHK
o
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFMBHE

AEERBEABMBFEFENZEREERAR
BMEFHIIT

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Year ended 30 June

HZ6A30H L EE
20124 20114 20104
HKS HKS HKS
B IT BT BT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(LE5) (7= E51) (#=E51)
RESULTS S
Revenue WA 44,202,758 | 51,252,055 41,903,291 4,704,192 4,389,627
Profit/(Loss) for the year RKRFHER A
attributable to owners [ERAEE
of the Company wFl/ (EE) 11,682,665 | (16,181,273)  (1,907,259)  (1,342,052) 312418956
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHREE
Total assets BEE 478,771,228 | 323251520 307,525,449 147,503,961  91,738439
Total liabilities FRN=R 6,160,666 | 10,113,750 15,560,735 1,447,049 1,883,786
Net assets BEFEAE 472,610,562 | 313,137,770 291,964,714 146056912 89,854,653
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